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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The company 1s a holding company and through its subsidiary undertakings 1s primarily engaged i publishing and providing
mformation, principally in North Amenica and Europe

The company 1s jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Results and dividends

Revenue from continuing operations for the year was £4,534 mullion (2006 £4,458 million) and adjusted operating profit (1 ¢
before acquisition integration costs, amortisation of acquired intangible assets and the equity share of taxes 1n joint ventures)
from continuing operations was £1,098 million (2006 £1,058 million) The adjusted operating margin was 24 2%, 0 5
percentage ponts higher than the prior year Operating profit from continuing operations was £850 million (2006 £814
million} Net finance costs were £418 million, up £17 million from the prior year

The group profit before tax from continuing operations of £530 milhon (2006 £412 million) includes acquisition integration
costs of £20 rullon (2006 £23 million} and gasns on disposals and other non operating items amounting to £38 million (2006
£1 mullion loss) and charges for the amortisation of intangible assets of £220 million (2006 £221 mullion)

The effective tax rate on profits before acquisition related costs, disposals and other non operating 1tems and amortisation of
intangible assets was 26 0% (2006 27 1%)

The net profit from discontinued operations of £309 million (2006 £33m) includes post-tax gains on disposals of £228 million
(2006 ml)

The profit attributable to shareholders for the year amounted to £948 mullion (2006 £371 million)

During the year the company paid dividends of £850 million (2006 £596 million) on the “R” ordinary shares, nil on the “E”
ordinary shares (2006 £230 million), and preference dividends of £7,500 (2006 £7,500) and subsidrary undertakings paid a
further £966 miilion (2006 £529 miilion) to Reed Elsevier NV 1n respect of its holding of shares with special dividend rights
in Reed Elsevier Overseas BV

At 31 December 2007 gross borrowings of £1,902 mullion (2006 £1,930 million) were offset by cash and cash equivalents of
£2,345 milhon (2006 £322 mullion) and derivative financial instruments used to hedge the value of borrowings of £162
mullion (2006 £123 million) [In addition, net borrowngs from sharcholders and from Elsevier Reed Finance BV group
amounted to £7,870 million (2006 £6,066 million)

Operating Business review

The results of the businesses are reported 1n three segments, Elsevier, LexisNexis, and Reed Business, which comprige the
continuing operations of the group Following announcement in February 2007 of the planned sale of Harcourt Education, the
division 15 presented as a discontinued operation

Adjusted figures and constant currency growth rates are used by Reed Eisevier as additional performance measures Adjusted
operating profit 15 stated before the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and acquisition integration ¢osts Constant
currency growth rates are based on 2006 full year average and hedge exchange rates

Unless otherwise indicated, all percentage movements mn the following commentary refer to performance at constant exchange
rates Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, excluding acquisitions and disposals

Elsevier

Revenues and adjusted operating profits were up 6% and 10% respectively at constant currencies before acquisitions and
disposals After portfohio effects, most notably the acquisition of the Beilstemn chemical compounds database and the sale of
the MDL software business, revenues were up 4% and adjusted operating profits up 9% at constant currericies The overall
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adjusted operating margin improved by | | percentage points, driven by revenue growth and cost efficiency most particularly ,
1n production and procurement

The Science & Technology business saw underlying revenue growth of 6%, or 2% at constant currencies after acquisitions and
disposals, reflecting Journal subscription renewals at record levels and growing online sales with increasing market

penetration

ScienceDirect saw widening distribution especially in small academic and emerging markets, and particular success from the
further launch of electronic boeks ScienceDirect online usage was agam up over 20% Impact Factors, one of the industry’s
standard measures of content quality, increased for 65% of our journals, more than for any other major science and medicat
publisher Good progress was also made 1n our customer service programmes with positive developments across a wide range
of surveyed measures

In March, we acquired the full nghts to the Beilstein chemical compounds database, previously operated under hicence, which
1s now being integrated with other resources to deliver cantent rich and innovative online sclutions In October we sold the
MDL software services business which increasingly did not fit within Elsevier’s strategy

In Health Sciences, revenue growth at constant currencies was 6%, both before and afier the impact of acquisinons and
disposals, driven by good growth 1n the nursing and allied health professional sector, and expanding online solutions

The year saw successful publishing and a growing appetite within the healthcare industry for technology enabled information
solutions to improve the quality and effectiveness of diagnosis, treatment and care Growth was partly held back by a flat
performance in pharma advertising, with share gains compensating for weaker markets

Electronic products, such as the MDConsult clinical reference product, are showing good double digit growth 1n usage The
Evoive digital learning platform had a successful year with a 40% increase in registered users New products were rolled out
with very postitive market response These included Mosby’s Nursing Skills, endorsed by the American Association of Clinical
Nurses, which offers detailed interactive guidance 1n over 500 skills drawn from our leading reference works At the British
Medical Awards in September, we won more top awards for our publishing than any other publisher

In addition to investment 1n new publishing and digital solutions, we continued to expand our businesses in attractive high-
growth segments through two highly complementary acquisitions in December Chinical Practice Model Resource Centre
(CPMRC), a leading provider of deciston support solutions for nurses and healthcare practitioners to improve patient care and
safety, and, MEDay, a provider of clinical outcome analytics and nisk identification and management for both the payers and
providers of healthcare

The outlook for Elsevier 1s posittve Revenue momentum is good with successful publishing, strong renewals and growng
digital product 1n attractive markets The revenue growth and continuous actions to improve cost efficiency 1s driving good
underlying margin improvement We look forward to another successful year in Elsevier in 2008

LexisNexis

Revenues and adjusted operating profits were up 7% and 12% respectively at constant currencies before acquisitions, and 8%
and 14% including acquisitions The overall adjusted operating margin improved by 1 3 percentage paints, reflecting the
strong revenue growth and the actions taken to improve cost efficiency

In US Legal markets, strong subscription renewals and additional online information and solutions sales, partly held back by
fewer large si1zed discovery cases, drove underlying revenue growth of 5%

New Total Solutions products were introduced throughout the year in the core areas of litigation, client development, practice
management, and research Total Practice Advantage, with a series of releases in 2007, has seen particular success providing
smali law firms with practice management and client development tools in one integrated easy to use solution Other Total
Solutions are also growing well such as Total Litigator, combining case management tools, document and evidence
repositories, discavery tools, file and serve applications, and research

The growth in the attractive Total Solutions markets 15 being accelerated through acquisition as well as organic investment In
July, we acquired Junis, which provides medium sized law firms with time and billing and other practice management
solutions, to complement what we have achieved 1n small law firms with Total Practice Advantage In electronic discovery, we
acquired Image Capture Engieering in June to complement the Concordance business acquired last year These businesses are
being integrated within Total Linigator to service the majority of electronic discovery needs and are steadily migrating to a
subscription model
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In US Corporate and Public Markets, underlying revenue growth was 6% Whilst the news and bustness information business
1s slower growing, we saw strong demand 1n risk management and in processing higher volumes for the US patent and
trademark office The Risk Information and Analytics business again saw double-digit revenue growth and further good
margin expansion driven by the continued strength of the market combined with leading technology and content The business
continues to expand its product offerings and build its presence in this attractive sector

The LexisNexis International business outside the US delivered underlying revenue growth of 8% at constant rates, or 10%
including acquisitions, and strong margmn and profit growth Underlying revenue growth has now been at or around this level
for each of the last four years, driven by the growing penetration of online information services across our markets and new
publishing Good growth was seen 1n the UK, France and Southern Africa in particular as well as in emerging markets such as
India, Korea, China and Taiwan

To support the penetration of cur Total Solutions strategy, we have been realigning and transforming the sales organisation
This has involved the integration of multiple sales forces into one in the US, global sales coordination, a substantial upgrade 1n
capabilities and the deployment of our portfolio solution selling methodology, tools and processes This will be extended
globally as Total Solutions products are introduced internationally Additionally, we have streamlined and strengthened our
organisation by establishing global management responsibilities for solutions development and dehivery, unified marketing,
production and customer support

The outlook for LexisNexis 1s positive The Total Solutions strategy, mcreased penetration of online services mnternationally
and the strong demand for risk information and analytics 1s driving good revenue momentum LexisNexis has shown
meaningful good underlying margin improvement in each of the last seven years and, with good revenue growth and continued
action on costs, further strong progress 15 expected

Reed Business

Revenues and adjusted operating profits were up 6% and 8% respectively at constant currencies before acquisitions and
disposals, or 7% and 10% after portfolio changes The overall adjusted operating margin was up 0 5 percentage points, with
the cycling out of contribution from biennial joint venture exhibitions reducing margin growth by 0 2 percentage points

Reed Exhibitions saw revenues 13% ahead at constant currencies, or 12% excluding acquisitions and disposals Strong growth
was seen across the show portfolio with particular success at the Mipim mtermational property show 1n Cannes and the JCK
Jewellery show 1n Las Vegas Adjusted operating profits were up 11% at constant currencies, or 8% excluding acquisitions and
disposals, held back by the cycling cut of the contribution from bienmial joint venture shows Excluding the cycling of shows,
underlying revenue growth and adjusted operating profit growth were 10% and 11% respectively

Thirty new shows were launched in the year, in sectors ranging from personal care to aerospace and from Argentina to China
The pertfohe was also added to through the acquisttion of a joint venture mnterest 1n Alcantara Machado, the leading show
organiser in Brazil, and of a group of six international aerospace shows The decision was taken to exit the defence sector and
a sale process 1s underway

The Reed Busmess Information magazine and information businesses saw revenues 4% ahead at constant currencies, or 3%
before acquisitions and disposals Continued strong growth n online services of 20% underlying more than compensated for a
2% dechine in print as the business migrates onhne Online revenues now contribute 30% of RBI’s revenues Adjusted
operating profits were up 10% at constant currencies through continued actions to improve cost efficiency

In the UK, underlying revenues were up 5% reflecting strong growth in oniine sales, up 19% and which now represent 46% of
total RBI UK revenue Totaljobs, the leading UK recruitment site, continued its rapid growth with revenues up 35% The
number of market leadmg job boards increased from 10 to 12 1n 2007 with the launch of UK regional sites in Scotland and the
North West of England and further launches are planned In the Netherlands and International, underlying revenue growth was
4% with good growth 1n online products [n the Netherlands, Elsevier magazine reached record print circulation levels and
recetved an industry award as the number one magazine for advertisers and media agencies In the US, RBI underlying
revenue was flat, with online revenues growing rapidly, effset by the decline in print including discontinued titles Advertising
revenues grew rapidly across community sites, up 31% This reflects surging web traffic as these sites increasingly become a
starting point on the web for the communities they serve with their mix of professional content, commumnity interaction and
onlhine tools proving attractive for both users and advertisers

The growth of online sales 1n RBI was accelerated by a number of acquisitions, including BuyerZone, a fast growing onlme

service for matching vendors and buyers in procurement tendering, acquired in January 2007 and DoubleTrade, an online
tendering service, acquired 1n April 2007 Baoth are performing strongly
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The outlock for Reed Business 1s posttive The demand for exhibitions remains good and advance bookings, particularly for

the important first half of 2008, are encouraging The busmess magazines and information businesses, whilst seeing some |
general uncertainty in markets such as property and construction, are seeing no overall shift in market trends with continued i
strong growth in online services and slow decline in print Continued cost actions are expected to deliver overall margin |
improvement together with the cycling 1n of joint venture exhibitions

Discontinued operations-Harcourt Education

Following annguncement 1 February 2007 of the planned sale of Harcourt Education, the division is presented as a
discontinued operation On 4 May, the sale of the Harcourt Education International and Harcourt Assessment businesses to
Pearson plc was announced, and on 16 July the sale of the Harcourr US K-12 Education businesses to Houghton Mifflin
Riverdeep Group was announced The disposals of the UK, Australian and New Zealand businesses of Harcourt Education
International completed in May 2007 with the South African business completing in August 2007 The disposal of the
Harcourt US K-12 Educanion businesses completed in December 2007, and the disposal of Harcourt Assessment and the
remaning Harcourt Education Imternational businesses completed in January 2008

The reduced revenues and adjusted operaung profits reported for Harcourt Education 1n the year reflect the timing of the
busimess disposals and the seasonahty of the businesses

The Harcourt Education US K-12 business saw revenues up 4% at constant currencies for the first eleven months of the year
with good growth 1n the basal publishing businesses partly offset by a weaker supplemental market Harcourt had significant
success In the state textbook adoption market and in particular with its new elementary social studies and math programmes
and secondary math The secondary business agamn took by far the largest market share in new textbook adoptions The
supplemental market declined as traditional supplemental product gives way to more comprehensive intervention and
assessment products and further investment was made i these The new StoryTown elementary reading programme launched
in open territories has been very well received which bodes well for the major reading adoptions 1in 2008

The Assessment business saw revenues 1% lower at constant currencies This reflected the prior year loss of two major state
testing contracts, with the business almost making up the gap with new publishing and contract wins and extenstons The
turnaround in operational performance 15 also reflected in sigmificantly improved profitability

The sale of the majority of the Internattonal business was completed in May 2007 with the remainder completed 1n August
2007 and Yanuary 2008

Future prospects

[n the new financial year we have stepped up the momentum with plans to accelerate growth the planned divestment of Reed
Business Information trade magazines and information busimnesses to reduce cur exposure to advertising markets and their
cychcality, the agreed £2 1 lillion acquisition of Choicepoint Inc 1n the fast growing nsk mformation and analytics markets,
and a major restructuring programme to deliver substantial cost savings over and above our regular annual improvements 1n
costs effectiveness

Going into 2008, conditions rematn generally favourable in our markets with strong subscription renewals and good revenue
momentum for online information and workflow solutions The business magazines and information businesses, whilst seeing
general uncertainty in markets such as property and construction, are seeing no overall shift in market trends

Qur focus 1n 2008 will be on executing aganst our four strategic priorities delivering authoritative content through leading
brands, driving onhine solutions, improving cost efficiency, and reshaping and strengthening the portfolio Implementation of
the restructuring programme, the planned divestment of Reed Business Information and the acquisition and integration of
ChaicePoint will be of particular significance

The outlook for Reed Elsevier Group plc ts very positive We are well positioned 1n attractrve markets, the momentum in the
business 1s showing through n the good financial performance, and the changes we are making will strengthen the business
and accelerate our growth

TREASURY POLICIES

The boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have requested that Reed Elsevier Group plc has due regard to the
best interests of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders in the formulation of treasury policies
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Financial instruments are used to finance the Reed Elsevier Group plc’s businesses and to hedge transactions Reed Elsevier
Group plc’s businesses do not enter into speculative transactions The main treasury risks faced by Reed Elsevier Group plc
and 1t’s subsidiaries are hquidity risk, interest rate nisk and foreign currency risk The board of the Reed Elsevier Group plc

agrees overall policy guidelines for managing each of these risks These policies are summarised below

Liqudity

Reed Elsevier Group plc maintains a range of borrowing facilities and debt programmes to fund its requirements, at short
notice and at competitive rates The sigmficance of Reed Elsevier Group pic’s US operations means that the majonty of third
party debt 1s denominated in US dollars and 15 raised in the US debt markets A mixture of short term and long term debt 1s
utilised and Reed Elsevier Group plc maintains a maturity profile to facilitate refinancing Reed Elsevier Group ple's policy 1s
that no more than US$1 0bn of term debt tssues should mature in any 12-month period In addition, minimum levels of
borrowings with maturities over three years and five years are specified, depending on the level of net debt

After taking account of the maturity of committed bank facitities that back short term borrowings at 31 December 2007, and
after utilising available cash resources (excluding £1,933m proceeds received from the part disposal of Harcourt Education,
which was included in the special distribution to shareholders of the parent compan:es tn January 2008), no third party
borrowings mature n the next two years (2006 nil), 9% of borrowings mature in the third year (2006 9%), 38% 1n the fourth
and fifth years (2006 28%), 30% In the sixth to tenth years (2006 42%), and 23% beyond the tenth year (2006 21%)

At 31 December 2007, Reed Elsevier Group ple had access to £1,502m (2006 £1,529m) of committed bank facilities that
expire In two to three years, of which £42m (2006 £39m) was drawn These facihities principally provide back up for short
term debt but also security of funding for future acquisition spend 1n the event that commercial paper markets are not
available All these committed facilittes expire within two to three years (2006 two to three years)

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group also has barrowings from 1ts affiliate Elsevier Finance SA totaling £5,012m (2006
£4,886m) of which 20% mature 1n the next year 2006 17%), 23% mature 111 the second year (2006 13%), 12% mature 1n the
third year (2006 23%), 28% mature in the fourth and fifth years (2006 29%), and 17% mature in the sixth to tenth years
(2006 15%)

The US$4 1 billion acquisition of Choicepoint Inc, announced by Reed Elsevier on 21* February 2008, will be financed
inttially from new bank facilities of up to US$4 65 billion which three major banks have committed to underwrnite and arrange
This inhal funding will be refinanced later through the 1ssuance of term debt

Interest rate exposure management

Reed Elsevier Group plc’s interest rate exposure management policy 1s aimed at reducing the exposure of the business to
changes in interest rates The proportion of interest expense that 15 fixed on net debt 15 determined by reference to the level of
interest cover in Reed Elsevier Group plc, 1t’s subsidiaries and affiliates Reed Elsevier Group plc uses fixed rate term debt,
Interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and a range of interest rate options to manage the exposure Interest rate
derivatives are used only to hedge an underlying risk and no net market positions are held

Foreign currency exposure management

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of business operations 1n countries other than those of Reed Elsevier
Group plc  These exposures are hedged, to a significant extent, by a policy of denominating borrowings in currencies where
significant translation exposures exist, most notably US dellars

Currency exposures on transactions denominated 1n a foreign currency are required to be hedged using forward contracts In
addition, recurning transactions and future investment exposures may be hedged, within defined limits, 1n advance of
becoming contractual The precise policy differs according to the commercial situation of the individual businesses Expected
future net cash flows may be covered for sales expected for up to the next 12 months {50 months for Elsevier science and
medical subscription businesses up to limits staggered by duration) Cover takes the form of foreign exchange forward
contracts

As at 31 December 2007, the amount of outstanding foreign exchange cover 1n respect of future transactions was £723m
Capital Management

Reed Elsevier Group plc actively manages its capital structure to support the objective of 1ts parent companies, Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV, to maximise long-term shareholder value through ready access to debt and capital markets, cost
effective borrowing and flexibility to fund business and acquisition opportunities whilst maintaining appropriate leverage to
optimise the cost of capital
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Over the long term Reed Elsevier Group ple targets cash flow conversion (the proportion of adjusted operating profits
converted mto operating cash flow) of 90% or higher to reflect this aim and consistent with a solid investment grade credit
rating  In addition, levels of net debt {(when combined with net debt of the parent companies, their direct and indirect
subsidiaries and jointly held affiltates) should not exceed those consistent with such a rating other than for relatrvely short
periods of time, for mstance following an acquisition  To achieve this aim, Reed Elsevier Group plc and 1its subsidiaries may
obtain financing on appropriate arms length terms and conditions from their affiliate Elsevier Finance SA

Reed Elsevier Group plc’s use of cash reflects 1ts objectives through selective acquisitions and a dividend policy which
ensures distributable reserves are maintamned at an appropriately high level to meet the requirements for dividends by Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV This regular remittance of dividends also creates the opportumity to examine regularly
the capital structure of each subsidiary and ensure that fiscal efficiency 1s achieved

The balance of long term debt, short term debt and committed bank facilities 1s managed to provide secunty of funding, taking
into account the cash generation of the business and the uncertain size and timing of acquisition spend  Certan third party
debt and commutted bank facilittes are guaranteed by the parent companies where this results i a lower cost of borrowing

There were no changes 1o Reed Elsevier Group plc’s approach to capital management during the year

DIRECTORS

The Reed Elsevier Group plc board consists of five executive directors Sir Crispm Davis — Chief Executive Officer, Mark :
Armour — Chief Financial Officer, Gerard van de Aast, Erik Engstrom and Andrew Prozes, and seven independent non-

executive directors Jan Hommen (Chairman), Mark Elliott, Lisa Hook, David Reid (senior independent non-executive

director), Lord Sharman, Rolf Stomberg and Robert Polet (from 17" April 2007)

During the year Cees van Lede and Strauss Zelnick retired as non-executive directors and following the sale of the Harcourt
Education division, Patrick Tierney retired in January 2008 as an executive director The joint Nominations Commuttee of
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV recommended Mr Polet as a candidate for election after appointing recrurtment
consultants to preduce a short list of candidates who met the requirements of the board profile (available on

www reedelsevier com) which identifies the skills and experience required by the board of potential non-executive
directors/supervisory board members

Board attendance

Reed Elsevier Group ple

Mem bers Number of
Date of  meeting held Number of
appolhtment/(cessation) whilst a meetings
during the year director attended

Gerard van de Aast 9 9
Mark Armour 9 9
Sir Crispin Davis 9 9
Mark Elliott 9 7
Erik Engstrom 9 9
Jan Hommen 9 9
Lisa Hook 9 9
Cees van Lede (April 2007) 2 2
Robert Polet Aprtl 2007 7 3
Andrew Prozes 9 9
David Rerd 9 7
Lord Sharman 9 6
Rolf Stomberg 9 6
Patrick Tierney 9 8
Strauss Zelnick (December 2007) 9 6
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At the board meeting to be held on 23 April 2008, Sir Crispin Davis, Andrew Prozes, Lisa Heok and Gerard van de Aast will
retire from the board of Reed Elsevier Group plc by rotatton The Nominations Commuittee has recommended to the board the
re-appointment of each director and, being eligible, they will each offer themselves for election

All directors have full and timely access to the information required to discharge their responsibilities fully and efficiently

They have access to the services of the respective company secretaries, other members of Reed Elsevier’s management and
staff, and its external advisors Directors may take independent professional advice in the furtherance of their duties, at the
relevant company’s expense

In addition to scheduled board and board commuittee meetings held during the year, directors attend many other meetings and
site visits Where a director 1s unable to attend a board or board committee meeting, he or she 1s provided with all relevant
papers and information relating to that meeting and 1s able to discuss 1ssues arsing with the respective chairman and other
board members

On appointment and as required, directors receive training appropriate to their level of previous experience This includes the
provision of a tallored mmduction programme so as to provide newly appointed directors with information about the Reed
Elsevier Group plc businesses and other relevant information to assist them n performing their duties Non-executive directors
are encouraged to visit the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses to meet management and senior staff

Board Committees

In accordance with the principles of good corporate governance, the following committees, all of which have written terms of
reference, have been established by the respective boards

Audit Commuttee

Reed Elsevier Group plc has established an Audit Committee The Committee comprises only non-executive directors, all of
whom are independent The Commuittee 1s chaired by Lord Sharman, the other members being Lisa Hook and David Reid and
Strauss Zelnick (unt1l 7 December 2007)

The main role and responsibilities of the Commuttee tn relation to the respective companies are set out 1n written terms of
reference and include

(1) to momitor the integrity of the financial statements of the company, and any formal announcements relating to the
company’s financial performance, reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contaimed 1n them,

(11) to review the company’s internal financial controls and the company’s internal control and risk management systems,
(1) to monitor and review the effectiveness of the company’s internal audit function,

(1v) to make recommendations to the board, for 1t to put to the shareholders for their approval in general meetings, n relation
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor,

(v} to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking
into consideration relevant professional and regulatory requirements, and

(v1) to develop and recommend policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non audit services, taking into
account relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of non audit services by the external audit firm, and to monitor
comphance

The Commuttee reports to the board on its activities identifying any matters 1n respect of which it considers that action or
improvement 15 needed and making recommendations as to the steps to be taken

The Commuttee has explicit authority to investigate any matters within 1ts terms of reference and has access to all resources
and information that it may require for this purpose The Commuttee 15 entitled to obtan legal and other independent
professional advice and has the authonty to approve all fees payable to such advisers

The chief financial officer, group chief accountant, director of internal audit and senior representatives of the external auditors
attend meetings of the Audit Commuttee The Committee met five times during the year Mr Reid was unable to attend one
meeting and Mr Zelnick attended three of the four meetings during the period for which he served as a member of the
Comnmuittee

Remuneration Committee

The Committee 1s responsible for
> setting the remuneration 1n all 1ts forms, and the terms of the service contracts and all other terms and conditions of
employment of directors of Reed Elsevier Group ple apponted to any executive office of employment,

Reed Elsevier Group plc 8
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> advising the Chief Executive Officer on the remuneration of members of the Management Commuttee (other than executive
directors) of Reed Elsevier Group plc and of the Company Secretary,

> providing advice to the Chief Executive Officer, as required, on major policy 1ssues affecting the remuneration of executives
at a senior level below the board, and

> establishing and amending the rules of all share-based incentive plans for approval by shareholders

Throughout 2007, the Commuttee consisted of independent non-executive directors as defined by the Combined Code and the
Chairman of Reed Elsevier On 4 July 2007 Mark Elliott took over from Rolf Stomberg as Charrman of the Commuittee

The Company Secretary, Stephen Cowden, also attends the meetings m his capacity as secretary to the Commuttee At the
mvitation of the Commuttee Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer attends the meetings of the Commuttee except when his
own remuneration s under consideration

A Drrectors’ Remuneration Report, which has been approved by the board of Reed Elsevier Group ple, appears on pages 12 to
5

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Internal Control

Reed Elsevier Group plc has an established framework of procedures and internal controls, with which the management of
each business 1s required to comply Group businesses are required to maintain systems of internal control, which are
appropriate to the nature and scale of their activities and address all significant operational and financial risks that they face
The board of Reed Elsevier Group plc has adopted a schedule of matters that are required to be brought to 1t for decision

Reed Elsevier Group plc has a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that provides a guide for achieving its business goals and
requires officers and employees to behave m an open, honest, ethical and principled manner The Code also outhines
confidential procedures enabling employees to report any concerns about compliance, or about Reed Elsevier’s financral
reporting practice

Each division has 1dentified and evaluated 1ts major risks, the controls 1n place to manage those risks and the level of residual
nisk accepted Risk management and control procedures are embedded inte the operations of the business and include the
monitoring of progress in areas for improvement that come to management and board attention The major risks 1dentified
include business continuity, protection of IT systems and data, challenges to intellectual property nghts, management of
strategic and operational change, evaluation and integration of acquisitions, and recruitment and retention of personnel

The major strategic risks facing the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses are considered by the board Litigation and other legal
and regulatory matters are managed by legal directors in Europe and the United States

The Reed Elsevier Group plc Audit Committee receives regular reports on the management of matenal risks and reviews these
reports The Audit Committee also receives regular reports from both iternal and external auditors on internal control matters
In addition, each division 1s required, at the end of the financial year, to review the effectiveness of 1ts internal controls and
report 1ts findings on a detailed basis to the management of Reed Elsevier Group plc These reports are summarised and, as
part of the annual review of effectiveness, submutted to the Audit Committee of Reed Elsevier Group plc The Chairman of the
Audit Commuittee reports to the board on any significant internal control matters ansing

Annual review

As part of the year end procedures, the audit committee and board of Reed Elsevier Group plc review the effectiveness of the
systems of internal control and risk management during the last financial year The objective of these systems 1s to manage,
rather than elimnate, the risk of fatlure to achieve business objectives Accordingly, they can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are required by English company law to prepare a directors’ report and financial statements for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group, and of the profit or loss for that
pertod In preparing those financial statements, the directors ensure that surtable accounting policies, consistently applied and
supported by reasonable judgements and estimates, have been used, and applicable accounting standards have been followed

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with
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reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the law

The directors have general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

As part of the process of approving the 2007 financial statements, the directors have taken steps pursuant to section 234ZA of
the Companies Act 1985 to ensure that they are aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s
auditors are aware of that information In that context, so far as the directors are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information
of which the company’s auditors are unaware

GOING CONCERN

The directors of Reed Elsevier Group plc, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that adequate resources exist for the
businesses to continue in cperational existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore, 1t 1s appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis 1n preparing the 2007 financial statements

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2007 contain forward looking statements These statements are subject to a
number of risks and uncertamnties and actual results and events could differ materially from those currently being anticipated as
reftected 1n such forward looking statements The terms ‘expect’, ‘should be’, ‘will be’, and similar expressions identify
forward looking statements Factors which may cause future outcomes to differ from those foreseen m forward locking
statements include, but are not limited to general economic conditions and business conditions in Reed Elsevier Group plc’s
markets, exchange rate fluctuations, customers’ acceptance of its products and services, the actions of competitors, legislative,
fiscal and regulatory developments, changes 1n law and legal interpretation affecting Reed Elsevier Group ple’s intellectual
property rights and internet communications, the impact of technological change, the failure to obtain regulatory approval for
the acquisition of Choicepoint Inc of the approval of its shareholders for the proposed merger

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We believe success means achieving our business goals through responsible and sustainable action We aim to be a leader 1n
our sector recogrused for profitable, ethical, innovative, business performance, positive engagement with stakeholders
mcluding shareholders, employees, and communities, enhancing the positive impact of what we do and limtting any negatrve
consequences, including on the environment

To make a real contribution to society we work to ensure good governance and spread best practice Accordingly, the Reed
Elsevier Corporate Responsibility Forum, chaired by CEO Sir Crispin Davis, with executives representing all major business
functions, met mid and end year to review CR policies, objectives and achievements We continued to take proactive steps on
CR legislation, consulting with the UK government on 1its carbon reduction commitment We also participated 1n Respect
Table with leading European compantes and Margot Wallstrém, Vice President of the European Commussion, to develop a
‘road map’ to Copenhagen, where a successor to the Kyoto Protocol climate change agreement will be formulated i 2009

Through HINARI (Health InterNetwork Access to Research Initiative), run by the World Health Organization, we provide
nstitutions 1n developing countries free or low cost access to 1000 health research journals In 2007, nearly one miliion
downloads were made from Elsevier publications Similarly, with AGORA {Access to Global Online Research in Agriculture),
offered by the UN Food and Agricultural Organization, Elsevier gave students, researchers, and academics 1n 67 developing
countries, free or low cost access to 1,175 agricultural and related journals (over 50% of the total journals available through
AGORA) Elsevier 1s also a founding member of OARE {Online Access to Research in the Environment) providing leading
environmental science to 375 qualifying institutions

Maintaining the integnty of what we produce 1s paramount We promote the Reed Elsevier Editorial Policy which mantains
our commitment to editorial freedom and original, accurate, fair and timely information Our publications and products
regularly recerve awards for excellence In 2007, the Periodical Publishers Assoctation awarded Reed Business’ Computer
Weekly its Editortal Campaign of the Year for a review of the UK government’s National Health Service IT investment
programme In addition to on-going customer listening, we launched REcommend across the divisions by surveymng 100,000
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customers to obtamn Net Promoter scores, a simple measure of whether our customers will recommend us Action plans have
been developed around results and the programme will continue into 2008

We proactively manage our portfolio of Businesses by active stakeholder engagement and Assessment This takes the form of
regular meetings with investors, staff, governments, NGOs and Benchmarking surveys (e g , DowJones Sustainability Index
and business in the Community CR Index) We continue to advance environmental goals by key facility, gamn further
understanding of certified sustainable paper used 1 our products and set targets for improvement, expand phased approach to
environmental certification to Reed Elsevier headquarters and develop model for use at other locations

Proactively managing our businesses means listening to stakeholders Their concern over our involvement in organizing
defence exhibitions led to our decision 1n the year to withdraw from the sector

We are passionate about building a sustainable business We are working to limit our impact on the environment through
energy and water use, waste generation, business travel, transport, paper, production technelogies and in our supply chain As
part of our 2007 water reduction campaign, we held a group competition won by Elsevier Oxford They pledged to explore
using rain water to maintain their grounds and, by turning off an exterior fountain, they reduced their annual water
consumption by 12% There were no breaches of international, national or other environmental regulations 1n the period

Following the 2006 Global Employee Opinion survey, we conducted a listening tour to understand the keys to success at
hughscoring locations The research was published as Bright Ideas Creating Great Places 1o Work, and distnbuted to all semor
managers Common success themes mcluded opportunities for development, clear communication, camaraderie, shared
purpose and support, transformational leadership, and humility As one employee noted, her manager “knows everyone by
name, he knows little background things about people which shows he genumely cares”

Our global health and safety awareness week, focused on wellness at the workstation, was launched with a new website,
Health REsources, containing data on our health and safety performance, advice and suggestions, and useful links

While advancing training on the Reed Elsevier Code of Ethics, we have also developed specialised courses in important areas
like data protection, doing business with governments, harassment awareness and discrimination

We donated £2 3 rmullion n cash donations {including matching gift programmes) and the equivalent of £1 4 million 1n gifts of
produets, services and staff time in 2007 During RE Cares Month in September we held a first-ever group book drive
resulting 1n 20,000 books for charities around the world We support key partners like Book Aid International (BAI), and for a
fourth year helped to build a reading culture in Namitna The project has encompassed new tools for hibrarians m their efforts
to encourage child reading and the development of in-school libraries to spur literacy and long-term educational opportunities
We meet regularly with BAI to brainstorm on how we can advance their prionties In 2007 this included providing funding to
repair their warehouse roof, damaged during a summer storm

In 2007 we made the position of running our SRS (Socially Responsible Supplier) programme full time and expanded the SRS
database to include new categories like exhibition venues and call centres We established China product safety standards for
book production covering mk, varmsh, spiral wire, lamination, and glue

We work with suppliers to ensure compliance with the Reed Elsevier Supplier Code of Ethics, dnving good practice through
internal and external audits If there 1s noncompliance, we set remediation plans with suppliers In the year, the mability of a
printer tn Asia to correct 1ssues mn their agreed remediation plan led to their suspension as a preferred supplier They are now
working to correct problems so as to resume their working relationship with us

POLITICAL DONATIONS

In the United States, the Reed Elsevier Group plc group contributed £60,000 to pohtical parties There were no donations
made 1n the European Umon for political purposes

PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

The company agrees terms and conditions for business transactions with suppliers and payment 15 made on these terms The
average time taken to pay suppliers was between 30 and 45 days

AUDITORS

Resolutions for the re-appoiniment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors of the company and authorising the directors to fix
their remuneration will be submutted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

By Order of the Board

Stephen J Cowden b ! < ; ! : Registered Office

Secretary 1-3, Strand

20-Feb-2008 London, WC2N 5JR
n
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This report provides Reed Elsevier's statement of how 1t has applied the principles of good governance relating to Directors’
remuneration and communicates 1ts policies and practices on executive remuneration to shareholders It has been prepared by
the Remuneration Commuttee (the “Commuttee”) of Reed Elsevier Group plc and approved by the board of Reed Elsevier
Group plc

Membership of the Remunerahon Committee

Throughout 2007, the Commuttee consisted of independent non-executive directors as defined by the Combined Code and the
Chairman of Reed Elsevier On 4 July 2007 Mark Elhott took over from Rolf Stomberg as Chairman of the Committee At the
invitation of the Commiitee Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer attends the meetings of the Committee except when his
own remuneration 1s under consideration

Remuneration philesophy and policy

The context for Reed Elsevier’s remuneration policy and practices 1s set by the needs of a group of global business divisions,
each of which operates internationally by line of bustness Furthermore, Reed Elsevier’s market listings 1in London and
Amsterdam combined with the majority of its employees being based in the US provides a particular set of challenges in the
design and operation of remuneration policy

Our remuneration philosophy
Reed Elsevier’s guiding remuneration philosophy for sentor executives 15 based on the following precepts

> Performance-related compensation, this underpins Reed Elsevier’s demanding performance standards
> Creation of sharcholder value, this 15 at the heart of our corperate strategy and 15 vital to meeting our investors’ goals

> Competitive remuneration opportunity, this helps Reed Elsevier attract and retain the best executive talent from anywhere in
the world

> Balanced mix of remuneration, this includes salary, incentive opportunities and benefits
> Aligning the interests of executive directors with shareholders, this is the foundation for remuneration decisions

Our remuneration pohcy
In line with this guiding philosophy our remuneration policy is described below

> Reed Elsevier aums to provide a total remuneration package that 15 able to attract and retain the best executive talent from
anywhere in the world, at an appropriate level of cost

> The Commuittee considers environmental, social and governance matters tn making 1ts decisions on remuneration policy,
practice, and setting performance targets

> Total remuneration of senior executives will be competitive with that of executtves 1n similar positions 1n comparable
companies, including global sector peers and companies of similar scale and international complexity

> Competiiveness will be assessed in terms of total remuneration

> The intention 15 to provide total remuneration that reflects sustained individual and business performance, 1 ¢ median
performance will be rewarded by total remuneration that 15 positioned around the median of relevant market data and upper
quartile performance by upper quartile total remuneration

How the performance measures in incentives hnk to our business strategy

The Commiuttee believes that the main driver of long term shareholder value 1s sustained growth in profitabiity The primary
measure of profitability that 15 used by nvestors is growth 1n adjusted earnings per share at constant currencies of Reed
Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV {Adjusted EPS) This performance measure has therefore been adopted as the key driver
of performance 1n our longer term 1ncentives

In our Annual Incentive Plan, we reward operational excellence by focusing on the financial measures of revenue growth,
profitability and cash generation In addition, a significant portion of the annual bonus 1s dependent on performance againsta
set of key business objectives that focus on the dehivery of our strategic priorities  Performance aganst these strategic
priorities creates the essential platform for growth in longer term profitability
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In 2006, we introduced a further performance measure into our Long Term [ncentive Plan of total shareholder return relative
to a focused ndustry peer group This measure 1s designed to reflect more directly the returns that we deliver to shareholders
via a combination of share price appreciation and dividends Together with sigmificant shareholding requirements as a
condition of vesting, this performance measure increases alignment of interest between our senior executives and our
shareholders

The balance between fixed and performance related pay

Around two thirds of each executive director’s remuneration package 1s linked to performance The following diagram shows
the balance between the fixed and vanable elements of the remuneration package assuming that target performance will be
achieved n 2008

Fiooed Pay Blementa 3%
C Salary 1%
B Pension & Cther benafits 12%

Variable Pay Elemants 699
M Long lerm incentves 52%
B Annual incentes 1 79

To 1llustrate how our levels of compensation vary with performance we have produced the chart below (scale in percent of
base salary) This shows the extent to which the remuneration payable to an executive director for 2008 would vary 1n practice
to reflect the level of performance achieved
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Our approach to market positioning and benchmarking

During the year, the Commuttee undertook a review of the benchmarking methodology applied in assessing the
competitiveness of the executive directors’ total remuneration The market competitiveness of total remuneration {1 e salary,
short and long term incentives and benefits) will be assessed against a range of relevant comparator groups as follows

> Global peers in the media sector

> UK hsted companies of similar size and international scope (excluding those in the financial services sector)

> US listed companies of stmilar size and international scope (excluding those in the financial services sector)

> Netherlands listed companies of similar size and international scope

The competitiveness of our remuneration packages 1s assessed by the Commuttee as part of the annual review cycle for pay and
performance, 1n line with the process set out below

> Furst, the overall competitiveness of the remuneration packages 15 assessed in terms of total remuneration

> The Committee then considers market data and benchmarks for the different elements of the package including salary, total
annual cash and total remuneration
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> The appropriate positioning of an individual’s total remuneration agamnst the market 15 determined based on the Committee’s
Judgement of individual performance and potential

> The aim s to target total remuneration normally between the median and upper guartile of the relevant market for
median/upper quartile performers respectively

> [f 1t 1s determined that a competitive gap exists n total remuneration terms, the Committee believes that this should be
addressed via a review of performance linked compensation elements 1n the first instance

> Benefits, including medical and retirement benefits, are positioned to reflect local country practice
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The total remuneration package

Overview of individual remuneration elements
The main elements of the reward package for executive directors are summarised below

Summary of remuneration elements for executive directors

Element

Purpose

Performance period

Performance measure

Salary

Positions the role and
individual within the
relevant market for
executive talent

Not applicable

Reflects the sustamned value of the
individual mn terms of skills, experience
and contribution compared with the
market

Annual Incentive Provides focus on the One year Award subject to the achievement of
Plan (AIP) delivery of the financial annual targets for
targets set out 1n the * Revenue — 30%
annual budget Motivates s Profit — 30%
the achievement of » Cash Flow Conversion Rate — 10%
strategic annual goals and + Key Performance Objectives — 30%
milestones (KPQOs) that
create a platform for
future performance
Bonus Investment Encourages personal Three years Matching shares vest after three years

Plan (BIP)

investment 1n and
ongoing holding of Reed
Elsevier shares to develop
greater alignment with
shareholders Supports

the retention of executives

subject to continued employment and
the achievement of an Adjusted EPS
growth hurdle There 1s no retesting of
the performance condition

Executive Share
Options Scheme
{ESQS)

Provides focus on longer
term share price growth
Rewards sustained
delivery and quality of
earnings growth

Three years

On grant — Adjusted EPS growth and
individual performance over three-year
period prior to grant On vesting —
Adjusted EPS growth over the three
year performance period post grant
There 15 no retesting of the performance
condition

Long Term Incentive
Plan
({LTIP)

Drives value creation
via longer term earnings,
share price and drvidend
growth Motivates and
rewards the delivery

of a total return to
shareholders

Three years

Adjusted EPS growth over the three
year performance period Relative
Total Shareholder Return (TSR) agamst
a selected group of comparator
companies over the three-year
performance period

There 15 no retesting of the performance
conditions

Retirement benefits

Positioned to ensure
broad competitiveness
with local country
practice

Not applicable

Specific to individual

Reed Elsevier Group plc




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
Each of these remuneration elements are described in greater detail below
Salary

Salary reflects the role and the sustained value of the individual 1n terms of skills, experience and contribution compared with
the relevant market

Salaries are reviewed annually in the context of the competitiveness of total remuneration Any increases typically take effect
on i January The table below shows the salaries that took effect on 1 January 2008

Salary from Salary from

1 Janvary 2008 | January 2007

Gerard van de Aast £585,996 £552,825
Mark Armour £613,440 £589,838
Sir Cnispin Davis £1,181,100 £1,135,680
Erk Engstrom £627,612 $1,146,600
Andrew Prozes $1,215,180 $1,168,440
Patrick Tiemey $1,071,200 $1,071,200

Durmg 2007 Enk Engstrom’s total remuneration package was altered to parallel UK remuneration arrangements His base
salary was translated from US dollars to Sterling using a conversion rate of £1 00 $1 90 which reflected the average £ $
exchange rate during his period of employment

Following the successful sale of Harcourt Education, Patrick Tierney retired on 30 January 2008 His salary was not increased
from 1 January 2008

The annual salary increases made to executive directors with effect from 1 January 2008 were 1n a range of 4-6% with an
average of 4 4% for those executive directors who received an increase This was shghtly below UK and US norms

It 1s important to emphasise that Reed Elsevier uses the same factors relevant pay market, skills, experience and contribution,
to determune the levels of increase across ali employee populations globally However, Reed Elsevier operates across many
diverse countries i terms of their remuneration structures and practices The levels of pay increase awarded to different
employee groups in different geographies reflect this diversity and range of practices

Annual Incentive Plan (AlP)
The Annual Incentive Plan provides focus on the delivery of the financial targets set out 1n the annual budget It further
motivates the achievement of strategic annual goals and milestones that create a platform for future performance

How the AIP works

For 2008, directors have a target bonus opportunity of 100% of salary (for 2007 this was 90%) The target bonus opportunity
for the financial measures 1s payable for the achievement of highly stretching financial targets, set in line with the annual
budget for the relevant business

The 100% target bonus opportunity 1s weighted as follows across the performance measures set out below
— Revenue 30%

— Profit* 30%

— Cash Flow Conversion Rate 10%

— Key Performance Objectives (KPOs) 30%

*The Profit measure for the CEQ and CFO 15 Adjusted Profit After Tax for the Reed Elsevier combined businesses The profit measure for Divisional CEOs 18
the Adjusted Operating Profit for their respective division

The four elements are measured separately, such that there could be a payout on one element and not on others
The KPOs are individual to each executive director Each director 1s typically set around six KPOs to reflect crimical business

priorities for which they are accountable Against each objective, a number of measurable ‘milestone targets’ are set for the
year Ali financial targets and KPOs are approved by the Commiuttee at the beginning of the year
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For 2008, payment against each financial performance measure will only commence 1f a threshold of 97 5% of the target 15
achieved (unchanged from 2007) A maximum bonus of 150% of salary can be earned (unchanged from 2007) for substantial
out-performance against the demanding annual budget targets and for the achievement of agreed KPOs to an exceptional
standard

AIP Payments for 2007
In assessing the level of bonus payments for 2007, the Committee noted the following underlying performances

Underlving percentage chanpe over 2006 at constant exchange rates

Reed Reed
Measure Elsevier  LexisNexis Business Elsevier
Revenue 6% % 6% 6%
Adjusted operating profits 10% 12% 8% 10%
Payments made for 2007

{to be paid 1n March 2008) % of salary
Gerard van de Aast £594,563 107.5
Mark Armour £666,222 1129
Sir Crispin Davis £1,267,419 1116
Erk Engstrom £592,004 981
Andrew Prozes $1,051,596 90 0
Patrick Tiemey $854,657 798

The annual bonuses paid to directors were based on performance against targets set for revenue growth, profit growth, the
achievement of the targeted cash flow conversion rate, and performance against key strategic objectives The Harcourt
Education sale was treated as a non-recurning item and its positive impact was excluded from the financial results for the
purposes of the AIP

The 2007 financial results were very strong, with 6% revenue growth (at constant currencies), underlying margins improved
by 100 basis points, and adjusted operating profits were up 10% at constant currencies The quality of earnings was
underpiined by excellent cash flow with 97% of adjusted operating profits converting into cash and higher returns on invested
capital Overall, earnings at constant currencies grew 12%, Reed Elsevier’s strongest growth for ten years There was strong
above market revenue growth in Elsevier, LexisNexis and Reed Business and encouraging margin progress in all three
businesses

In addition the directors were generally assessed as having delivered well against their KPOs with some exceptional
performances noted Individual KPOs were largely focused against execution and delivery of Reed Elsevier’s key strategic
priorities development of workflow solutions, improving cost efficiency, and strengthening and refocusing of the Reed
Elsevier portfoho Overall, this resulted, as shown above, 1n bonus payments generally above target

Bonus Investment Plan (BIP)
The Bonus Investment Plan encourages personal investment and ongoing shareholding in Reed Elsevier shares to develop
greater alignment with shareholders

How the BIP works

Executive directors and other designated key senior executives may invest up to half of their cash bonus received under the
AIP in shares of Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier NV Subject to continued employment and their retaining these
investment shares during a three-year performance period, participants will be awarded an equivalent number of matching
shares

The vesting of the matching shares 15 subject to the achievement of a performance conditton For the 2008 awards this has
been increased to at least 8% (from 6% 1n 2007) per annum compound growth n the average of Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV Adjusted EPS over the three-year performance period In the event of a change of control, the vesting of the
matching shares 15 subject to the discretion of the Commuttee
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BIP — new awards made 1n 2007

In 2007, executive directors mvested up to half of thewr cash bonus received under the AIP for 2006 in shares of Reed Elsevier
PLC and/or Reed Elsevier NV Subject to meeting the performance condition, continued employment and their retaining these
investment shares during a three-year performance penod, the following numbers of matching shares will vest in 2010

BIP Matching
Shares No of
Share type shares

Gerard van de Aast PLC -
NV 29,483
Mark Armour PLC 19,859
NV 13,371
Sir Crispm Davis PLC 74,708
NV —
Enk Engstrom PLC -
NV 27,572
Andrew Prozes PLC 21,548
NV 14,574 !
Patrick Tierney PLC 8,012
NV 5,420

BIP — awards that vested 1n 2007
The Adjusted EPS growth hurdle was exceeded for the three-year performance period from 2004-2006 Therefore the
following numbers of shares were transferred in 2007 under the terms of the BIP to the following executive directors

Market price
No of matching on date of

Share type  shares vested vesting Value
Gerard van de Aast PLC 31,217 £6 05 £188,862
NV - - -
Mark Armour PLC 19,225 £6 05 £116,311
NV 12,842 €13 25 €170,156
Sir Crispin Davig PLC 39,554 £6 05 £239,301
NV 26,421 €13 25 €350,078
Andrew Prozes PLC 20,104 £6 05 £121,629
NV 13612 €13 25 €180,359
Patrick Tierney PLC 19,572 £605 £118,410
NV 137252 €13 25 €175,589

Erik Engstrom joined Reed Elsevier during 2004 and did not participate in the 2004-2006 BIP cycle

The performance condition which applied to the vesting of the above awards was 6% per annum compound growth in
Adyusted EPS aver a three-year performance period The same performance condition applies to the unvested 2005, 2006 and
2007 BIP awards

Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS)
The Executive Share Option Scheme 1s designed to provide focus on longer term share price growth and reward the sustained
delivery and quality of earnings growth

How the ESOS works

Annual grants of options are made over shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV at the market price on the date of
grant The maximum size of the total grant to all participants 1s determined by the compound annual growth in Adjusted EPS
over the three years prior to grant The Target Grant Pool for all participants 1s defined with reference to share usage during
the base year as follows
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Adjusted EPS growth per annum Target Grant Pool
Less than 8% 50%
8% or more 75%
10% or more 100%%
12% or more 125%
14% or more 150%

ESOS options granted m 20035, 2006 and 2007 were subject to a pre-grant performance condition relating to the Target Grant
Pool of 6% to 12% Adjusted EPS growth per annum respectively

ESOS grants made to executive directors are subject to an annual individual maximum of three times salary The awards to
indrvidual directors are subject to the following three performance criteria

Test 1 On grant The size of the Target Grant Pool determined as above
Test 2 On grant Individual performance over the three-year period prior to grant
Test 3 On vesting  Compound Adjusted EPS growth during the three years following grant of at least 8% per annum

(increased from 6% pa) There 1s no retesting of the performance condition

ESOS optiens granted in 2005, 2006 and 2007 are subject to a post-grant performance hurdle of 6% per annum compound
Adjusted EPS growth over three years

Options are exercisable (except for defined categories of approved leavers) between three and ten years from the date of grant
In the event of a change of control, the performance test applied under the ESOS for executive directers will be based on an

assessment by the Committee of progress against the targets at the time the change of control occurs

ESOS options — new grants made in 2007

Option No. of

Share type price  options

Gerard van de Aast PLC £6 445 122,536
NV €14 51 80,928

Mark Armour PLC £6 445 130,740
NV €14 51 86,347

Sir Crispmn Davis PLC £6 445 251,730
NV €1451 166,254

Enk Engstrom PLC £6 445 130,060
NV €14 51 85,897

Andrew Prozes PLC £6 445 132,537
NV €14.51 87,533

Patrick Tierney PLC £6.445 121,628
NV €14 51 80,329
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ESQOS options — gains made 1n 2007
The followng gains were made by executive directors on the exercise of ESOS options in Reed Elsevier PLC (PLC) and Reed

Elsevier NV (NV) during 2007

Market
No of price an
options Option date of
Share type Grant date exercised price exercise Gain
Mark Armour PLC 21 Apr 1997 52,000  £56575 £6 07 £21,450
2 May 2000 88,202 £4 365 £6 07 £150,384
21 Feb 2003 104,319 £4 515 £6 07 £162,216
19 Feb 2004 155,147  £4 8725 £6 07 £185,788
NV 2 May 2000 61,726 €1073 €13 27 €156,784
21 Feb 2003 74,276 €934 €13 27 €291,904
19 Feb 2004 106,536 €1057 €13 27 €287,647
Patrick Tierney PLC 21 Feb 2003 371,426 £4 515 £6 3275 £673,209
NV 21 Feb 2003 266,258 €9 34 €14 08 €1,262,062

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
The Long Term Incentive Plan rewards the creation of value via the delivery of sustaned earnings growth and superior returns
for shareholders

How the LTIP works
Performance is measured over
a three-year performance penod
_ Relative TSR Final pay-out
Award of 3 Ve;t[lng:eg e?gvit? performance can n shdres is

target number —1— compound 9 ——i warease or i+t  determned by

of shares c’:n‘:guftgd EPS .aet decrease the performance

ntcurrencies larget award achieved

Executive directors are eligible to receive an annual award of performance shares with a target value of around 135% of
salary

The vesting of the award 15 subject to performance against two measures Adjusted EPS growth and relative TSR performance
over the same three-year performance peniod

How the LTIP performance measures work
The combined effect of the two performance measures 1s shown in the following table, which sets out the potential payment as

a percentage of the initial target award

LTIP Performance Schedule

TSR ranking

Adjusted EPS Growth (constant 62 5th  Upper quartile |
currencies) p.a. Below median Median percentile and above 1
Below 10% 0% 0% 0% 0%

|
10% 28% 35% 42% 49% 1
12% 80% 100% 120% 140%
14% and above 108% 135% 162% 189%

The EPS performance condition for LTIP awards granted in 2006 and 2007 ranges from 8% to 12% p a Ad)justed EPS growth
The Commuttee considers the above performance conditions to be tougher than normal UK practice because the TSR element
can enhance the reward to participants if, but only 1f, the Adjusted EPS test has first been achieved, as explained below
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EPS measure
No payout 1s made under the LTIP unless Reed Elsevier achieves a compound annual level of Adjusted EPS growth of at least
10% per annum This 1s irespective of the associated TSR performance

Maximum vesting (under the EPS component) 15 achieved for compound growth of 14% per annum or higher

The target award may be increased or decreased by relative TSR performance over three years.

TSR 15 measured against a group of global media peers

+ If TSR performance 15 below median, this will reduce the target award

+ The maximum uphift to the target award will be apphed if TSR performance places Reed Eisevier in the upper quartile of the
comparator group

For awards made in 2007, the comparator group compnsed
The Thomson Corporation, United Business Media, McGraw Hill, Fair Isaac, Reuters Group, John Wiley & Sons, Pearson,
DMGT, Wolters Kluwer, Lagardere, ChoicePoint, Dun & Bradstreet, EMAP, WPP, Informa, Taylor Nelson, Dow Jones

The Committee has full discretion to reduce or cancel awards granted to participants based on its assessment as to whether the
EPS and TSR performance fairly reflects the progress of the business having regard to underlying revenue growth, cash
generation, return on capital and any significant changes in currency and inflation, as well as individual performance

Notional dividends accrue on the award during the vesting period (1 ¢ to the extent that the underlying shares vest, notional
dividends are paid out as a cash bonus at the end of the three-year performance period)

For the purposes of determining Reed Elsevier’s TSR performance over the performance period, the averaging period applied
15 s1x months prior to the start of the financial year in which the award 1s made and the final six months of the third financial
year of the performance pertod The TSR of Reed Elsevier and each of the comparator companies will be calculated in the
currency of its primary histing, which the Commuttee considers to be the fairest test of management’s relative performance
Reed Elsevier’s TSR will be taken as a simple average of the TSR of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

For awards made 1n 2006, VNU was also a member of the peer group It has been removed for awards made 1n 2007 as 1t has
become a private company

In addition to achieving appropniate levels of performance agamst the two measures, the ulumate vesting of the LTIP award 1s
subject to the executive meeting a shareholding requirement (see page 24} In the event of a change of control, the
performance test apphied under the LTIP will be based on an assessment by the Committee of progress against the EPS and
TSR targets at the time the change of control occurs (subject to any rollover that may apply)

LTIP — target awards made in 2007
The target awards made to directors 1 2007, and which vest 1n 2010 depending upon the extent to which the performance
criteria are met, subject to continued employment and to meeting the shareholding requirement, are as follows

Target award

Share type No of shares

Gerard van de Aast PLC 57,898
NV 38,238

Mark Armour PLC 61,775
NV 40,799

Sir Crispin Davis PLC 118,942
NV 78,555

Erik Engstrom PLC 61,453
NY 40,586

Andrew Prozes PLC 62,623
NV 41,359

Patrick Tierney PLC 57,412
NV 37,917
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LTIP - awards that vested during 2007
The LTIP awards for the 2004-06 performance period, which vested in March 2007, were fully disclosed on pages 3% and 40
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 2006 and are also disclosed on pages 31 to 35 of this report

For reference, no LTIP awards were made 1n 2005 and as a result the next LTIP awards that are scheduled to vest will be for
the 2006-08 cycle which will be performance tested following the audited results in February 2009

Andrew Prozes has waived his right to participate in the 2009 and 2010 LTIP cycles

Treatment of the special distribution for share-based incentives
In January 2008 a special distribution was paid on ordinary shares in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

The special distribution was not attributed to any unvested share-based awards nor to any vested share options that had been
granted under the incentive plans None of these awards was therefore adjusted as a result of the consohidation of share capital
in January 2008

Other employee share plans

UK-based executive directors are eligible to participate in the HMRC approved ali-employee UK Savings-Related Share
Option Scheme US-based directors are eligible to participate in the all-employee US-based Employee Stock Investment
Plan (EMSIP) Under the EMSIP, employees are able to purchase Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV securities at the
prevailing market price, with commussions and charges being met by Reed Elsevier

The estimated dilution over a ten-year period from outstanding awards over Reed Elsevier PLC shares under all share-based
plans was 6 8% of the Reed Elsevier PLC share capital at 31 December 2007 This estimate was made before the share
consolidation which took place in January 2008

Retirement benefits policy

The Commuttee reviews policy retirement benefit provisions 1n the context of the total remuneration for each executive
director, bearing 1n mind his age and service and aganst the background of evolving legislation and practice in Reed
Elsevier's major countries of operation Base salary ts the only pensionable element of retnuneratton

Retirement benefits for UK-based executive directors

The UK-based executive directors are provided with conventional UK defined benefit pension arrangements targeting two
thirds (Sir Crispin Davis 45%) of salary at a normal retirement age of 60 The targeted pension 1s provided through a
combination of

> the mam UK Reed Elsevier Pension Scheme for salary restricted to a cap, determined annually on the same basis as the
pre-Apni 2006 Inland Revenue earnings cap, and

> Reed Elsevier’s unfunded unapproved pension arrangement for salary above the cap

Retirement benefits for non UK-bhased executive directors

The two US-based directors, Andrew Prozes and Patrick Tiemey, are covered by a mix of defined benefit and defined
contributicn arrangements In accordance with US legislation, they have no defined retirement age Patrick Tierney retired on
30 January 2008 and became fully vested in his pension

During 2007, the Commuttee reviewed Andrew Prozes’ pension provision i the context of relevant market data and
determined that he will receive an enhancement to his annual pension of $44,651 for each completed year of service between 1
July 2007 and 1 February 2011, applied on a pro-rata basis

Prior to 2007 Reed Elsevier paid an annual contribution of 19 5% of salary to Enk Engstrom’s personal pension plan

This arrangement ended on 31 October 2007 and with effect from 1 November 2007 he was provided with similar defined
benefit pension arrangements as those set out above for UK-based executive directors, targeting two thirds of salary at a
normal retirement age of 60

These arrangements are set out wn further detail on page 30
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Shareholding requirements
Participants 1n the L.TIP are required to build up a significant personal shareholding in Reed Elsevier PLC and/or Reed
Elsevier NV

The shareholding requirements were increased in 2006, when the new LTIP cycle for 2006-08 was launched The new higher
requirements must be met prior to any payout under that cycle 1n March 2008 The shareholding requirement for the Reed
Elsevier Chief Executive Officer was increased to three times salary {previously two times) and for other executive directors to
two times salary (previously one and a half times)

These shareholding requirements are a condition of vesting under the LTIP The executive directors that participated in the
2004 LTIP grant met and exceeded their shareholding requirements in respect of the 2007 vesting of this award Details of
directors’ shareholdings, as at 31 December 2007, are set out on page 34

Service contracts policy
Executive directors are employed under service contracts that provide for a maximum of one year’s notice The contracts
neither specify a pre-determined level of severance payment nor contain specific provisions in respect of change i control

The Commuttee believes that as a general rule, notice periods should be twelve months and that the directors should, subject to
practice within their base country, be required to mitigate thewr damages in the event of termination The Commuttee will,
however, note local market conditions so as to ensure that the terms offered are appropnate 1o attract and retain top executives
operating 1n global businesses

The service contracts for executive directors (and for approximately 100 other senior executives) contain the following
pProvisions

> non-compete provisions which prevent them from working with spectfied competitors, from recruiting Reed Elsevier
employees and from soliciting Reed Elsevier customers for a period of 12 months after leaving employment,

> 1n the event of their resigning, they will immediately lose all rights to any awards under the LTIP, ESOS and BIP granted
from 2004 onwards including any vested but unexercised options, and

> 1n the event that they were to Join a specified competitor within 12 months of termination, any gains made in the six months
prior to termination on the exercise of an LTIP, ESOS and BIP award made from 2004 onwards shall be repayable

External appointments pohcy

The Committee believes that the experience gained by allowing executive directors to serve as non-executive directors on the
boards of other organisations 15 of benefit to Reed Elsevier Accordingly, executive directors may, subject to the approval of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, serve as non-executive directors on the boards of up to two non-associated
companies (of which only one may be to the board of a major company) and they may retain remuneration ansing from such
appointments

> Gerard van de Aast became a non-executive director of OCE NV on | May 2006 and received a fee of €37,216 (£25,490)
during 2007 (€23,342 (£15,879) during 2006}

> Sir Crispin Davis 15 a non-executive directer of GlaxoSmithKline ple and received a fee of £70,000 during 2007 (£70,000
during 2006)

> Andrew Prozes 1s a non-executive director of the Cott Corporation and received a fee of $62,270 (£31,135) duning 2007
{$56,000 (£30,435) during 2006)

Reed Elsevier Group ple 23




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Non-executive directors

Policy on non-executive directors’ fees

Reed Elsevier seeks to recruit non-executive directors with the expenence to contribute to the board of a dual-listed global
business and with a balance of personal skills that will make a major contributton to the boards and their commuttee structures
With the exception of Dien de Boer-Kruyt, who serves only on the supervisory board of Reed Elsevier NV, non-executive
directors, including the Chairman, are appointed to the boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc, Reed Elsevier PLC and the
supervisory board of Reed Elsevier NV Non-executive directors’ fees reflect the directors’ membership of the three Reed

Elsevier boards

The primary source for comparative market data 1s the practice of FTSE50 companzes, although reference 1s also made to AEX

and US lListed companies

Non-executive directors, including the Chairman, serve under letters of appeintment, do not have contracts of service and are

not entitled to notice of, or payments following, retirement from the boards

Fee levels

Non-executive directors recerve one annual fee in respect of therr memberships of the boards of Reed Elsevier PLC, Reed
Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier Group plc The fee paid to Dien de Boer-Kruyt, who serves only on the supervisory board of
Reed Elsevier NV, reflects her time commitment to that company and to other companies within the Reed Elsevier combined
businesses Non-executive directors are reimbursed for expenses incurred 1n attending meetings They do not receive any
performance related bonuses, pension provision, share options or other forms of benefit Fees may be reviewed annually,

although n practice they have changed on a less frequent basts

During 2007, a review was conducted of the non-executive director fees 1n the context of relevant market data This was the
first time that non-executive directors’ fees had been reviewed since 2003 The fee for the Chairman, which was last reviewed
n 2005, was also included in this review The review indicated that fees paid by Reed Elsevier were no longer competitive

with those paid by companies of a comparable size and international scope

The new fee levels for the non-executive directors, which are effective from 1 January 2008, were reviewed and recommended
by the Reed Elsevier Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, and were approved by the Reed Elsevier Group plc board,
excluding those board members affected by the recommendations The Chairman indicated that his fee should remain
unchanged and will therefore remain at €350,000 per annum Annual fee rates applicable to non-executive directors and the

Chairman are set out in the following table

Annual fee 2008

Annual fee 2007

Chairman

Non-executive directors
Chairman of

— Audit Committee

— Remuneration Committee

€350,000
£55,000/€75,000

£15,000/€20,000
£15,000/€20,000

€350,000
£45,000/€65,000

£7,000/€12,000
£7,000/€12,000

As aresult of the review, the total annual fee payable to Dien de Boer-Kruyt was increased to €48,000 (from €33,800 in 2007}

The Reed Elsevier Chairman chairs the nommations committee and does not receive a separate fee for his role as chairman of

that committee

Non-executive directors’ donation matching programme
In 2007 the Reed Elsevier Group plc board had a charity donation matching programme for non-executive directors Under the
policy, where a non-executive director donates all or part of their fees to a registered chartty, Reed Elsevier may, at its sole
discretion, make a matching donation to that chanity, provided the chanity’s objectives are judged to be appropriate and are not
political or religious 1n nature David Reid, Strauss Zelnick, Cees van Lede, Mark Elliott and Jan Hommen each donated a
proportion of their fees i respect of 2007 to charity and, in accordance with the programme, matching charitable donations
were made of £45,000, £44 325, £13,699, £22 500 and £6,849 respectively This programme will not be operating in 2008
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Statutory disclosures
Unaudited disclosures

Report authorship
This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Commiuttee of Reed Elsevier Group ple It has been prepared in accordance
with Schedule 7A of the Companies Act 1985 and the Dutch Corporate Governance Code 1ssued 1n December 2003

The resolutions that will be presented at the AGMs

In accordance with Schedule 7A of the UK Companies Act of 1985, this Remuneration Report will be submitted to
shareholders for an advisory vote at the Annual General Meeting of Reed Elsevier PLC This Remuneration Report contains
the disclosures required under the Dutch Corporate Governance Code and Dutch legislation and resolutions will be submitted
for approval to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of Reed Elsevier NV relating to any policy changes and the
change 1n non-executive directors’ fees

Remuneration Committee terms of reference and constitution

The Commuttee 15 responsible for

> setting the remuneration n all 1ts forms, and the terms of the service contracts and all other terms and conditions of
employment of directors of Reed Elsevier Group plc appointed to any executive office of employment,

> advising the Chief Executive Officer on the remuneration of members of the Management Commitiee {other than executive
directors) of Reed Elsevier Group plec and of the Company Secretary,

> providing advice to the Chief Executive Officer, as required, on major policy 1ssues affecting the remuneration of executives
at a sentor level below the board, and

> establishing and amending the rules of all share-based incentive plans for approval by shareholders

A copy of the Terms of Reference of the Commuttee can be found on the Reed Elsevier website, www 1eedelsevier com

Throughout 2067, the Commuttee consisted of independent non-executive directors as defined by the Combined Code and the
Chairman of Reed Elsevier On 4 July 2007 Mark Elliott took over from Rolf Stomberg as Charrman of the Commuttee

The Company Secretary, Stephen Cowden, also attends the meetings 1n his capactty as secretary to the Commuittee At the
mnvitation of the Commttee Chanrman, the Chief Executive Officer attends the meetings of the Commuttee except when his
own remuneration 1s under consideration

The following table shows the non-executive directors who served as members of the Commuttee during 2007 The Commuttee
met s1x times during the year and the members attended meetings as shown below

Number of Number of
meetings held meetngs
whilst a attended by
Appomnted to (resigned from) Committee Committee
Members Commuttee during 2007 member member
Mark Elliott (Chairman from 4 July 2007} - 6 6
Jan Hommen - 6 6
Robert Polet 4 July 2067 4 3
Rolf Stomberg (Chairman until 4 July 2007) - 6 6
Cees van Lede (18 Apnl 2007) 1 1
Advisors

Towers Permin acted as advisors to the Commuttee throughout 2007 and also provided market data and data analysis

Towers Permn also provide actuarial and other human resources consultancy services directly to some Reed Elsevier
compantes During the year, the Committee also received advice from Kepler Associates relating to the review of the
remuneration pelicy and the benchmarking approach Kepler Associates did not provide any other services to Reed Elsevier

Fallowing a review of 1ts advisors, the Commuttee re-appointed Towers Perrin as independent advisors to the Commuttee to
support and advise the Commuttee on all aspects of executive remuneration

The following individuais also provided matenal advice to the Commuttee during the year lan Fraser (Group HR Director) and
Philip Wills (Director, Compensation and Benefits)
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Total Shareholder Return (TSR) graph

As required by Schedule 7A of the Companies Act 1985, the following graphs show the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier
NV total shareholder return performance, assuming dividends were reinvested They compare the Reed Elsevier PLC
performance with that achieved by the FTSE 100, and the Reed Elsevier NV performance with the performance achieved by
the Euronext Amsterdam (AEX) Index, over the five-year period from 31 December 2002 to 31 December 2007

For the five-year period from 31 December 2002, the TSR for Reed Elsevier PLC was 28%, against a FTSE 100 return of
88%

For Reed Elsevier NV during the same period, TSR was 23% against an AEX Index return of 78% As Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV are members of the FTSE 100 and AEX Index respectively, the Commutice considers these indices to be
appropriate for comparison purposes

Reed Elsevier PLCv FTSE 100 - Syears Reed Eisevier NV v AEX - § years
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For the eight-year period since 31 December 1999, being the period since Reed Elsevier set out its investment led growth
strategy, the TSR for Reed Elsevier PLC was 79%, significantly outperforming the FTSE 100 which showed a return of 22%
For Reed Elsevier NV in the same eight-year period TSR was 50%, also significantly outperforming the AEX Index which
showed a return of 3%
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The total shareholder return set out above 1s calculated on the basis of the average share price in the 30 trading days prior to
the respective year ends and on the assumption that dividends were remnvested
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Service contracts
Each of the executive directors has a service contract, as summarised below

Expiry date (subject

Contract Date to notice period) Notice period Subiect to
Gerard van de Aast(1} 15 November 2000 17 July 2017 12 months English law
Mark Armour{i} 7 October 1996 29 July 2014 12 months Englhsh law
Sir Crispin Davis(s) 19 July 1999 19 March 2009 12 months Enghsh law
Enk Engstrom(1) 25 June 2004 14 June 2025 12 months Enghsh law
Andrew Prozes(i1) 5 July 2000 Indefinite 12 months salary payable for New York law

termtnation without cause

Patrick Tierney(u1) 19 November 2002 Retired on 30 - New York law
January 2008
{1} Employed by Reed Elsavier Group ple () Employed by Reed Eisavier Inc

The Commuttee reviewed Erik Engstrom’s contract and remuneration arrangements during 2007 and altered his terms of
employment to parallel UK remuneration arrangements This change was made to reflect the current circumstances of his role

At the request of the Board, Patrick Tierney agreed to defer his planned retirement 1n early 2007 in order to manage and
oversee the sale of Harcourt Education for maximum value In order to secure that deferred retirement, the Commuittee put
special retentton and 1ncentive arrangements in place which 1} rewarded his continuing commitment to Reed Elsevier and
1) incentivised him to optimise the Harcourt Education sale proceeds Such payments are established practice in the US, and
increasingly mn Europe

The successful completion of the Harcourt Education sale on 30 January 2008 resulted 1n aggregate sale proceeds of $4 95
billion and a special distribution of $4 billion was pard to shareholders The Committee consequently awarded Patrick Tierney
a sale bonus of $2,917,150 calculated by reference to the excess of the above sale proceeds over a pre-determined target
figure Furthermore, the Commuttee recogmsed his outstanding management contribution to the Harcourt Education
performance in meeting financial targets during the extended sale period, and awarded Patrick Tierney a payment of
$1,500,000 under the terms of his retention bonus As required by Schedule 7A, these payments will be disclosed 1n full in the
audited section of the 2008 remuneration report

Patrick Tierney’s service contract terminated on 30 Janyary 2008 following his retirement from Reed Elsevier Any
outstanding awards under the ESOS, BIP and LTIP have been treated 1n accordance with the standard retirement rules under
those plans Patrick Tierney’s shareholding requirements in respect of his share-based awards termnated upon his retirement
For the avoidance of doubt, no severance payment has applied and he did not receive an ncrease in base salary from 1 January
2008 With effect from the date of retirement, he became fully vested in the pension arrangements that have been set out in the
current and prior remuneration reports
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Audited disclosures

Agpregate emoluments

The emoluments of the directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV (including any entitlement to fees or
emoluments from either Reed Elsevier Group plc or Elsevier Reed Finance BY) were as follows

2007 2006
£000 £000
Salanes and fees 4,566 4,502
Benefits 117 126
Annual performance-related bonuses 4,073 3273
Pension contributions i3 139
Pension n respect of former director 203 221
Total 9,090 8,261
No compensaticn payments have been made for loss of office or termination 1n 2007
No leans, advances or guarantees have been provided on behalf of any director
Details of long-term share-based incentives which vested and were exercised by the directors over shares in Reed Elsevier
PLC and Reed Elsevier NV durning the year are shown on pages 31 to 35 The aggregate notional pre-tax gain made by the
directors from such incentives during the year was £15,031,942 (2006 £1,408,072) The year on year increase primarily
reflects the vesting of the 2004 LTIP award in 2007 as disclosed on pages 31 to 35 of this report
Individual emoluments of executive directors
Salary Benefits Bonus Total 2007 Total 2006
£ £ £ £ £
Gerard van de Aast 552,825 17,535 594,563 1,164,923 1,061,603
Mark Armour 589,838 19,843 666,222 1,275,903 1,072,305
Sir Crispin Davis 1,135,680 28,137 1,267,419 2,431,236 2,040,008
Enk Engstrom 578,328 18,359 592,004 1,188,691 1,153,480
Andrew Prozes 584,220 23,184 525,798 1,133,202 1,193,922
Patrick Tierney 535,600 9,714 427,329 972,643 805,462
Total 3,976,491 116,772 4,073,335 8,166,598 7,326,780
Benefits principally comprise the provision of a company car or car allowance, health and disability insurance
Sir Crispin Davis was the highest paid director 1n 2007 His aggregate notional pre-tax gain on the vesting of share-based
incentives during the year was £3,560,951 (2006 £252,260)
Individual fees of non-executive directors
2007 2006
£ £
Mark Elhott 48,500 45,000
Jan Hommen 239,726 238,095
Lisa Hook (from 19 April 2006} 45,000 30,000
Cees van Lede (until 18 April 2007) 11,130 44 218
Robert Polet (from 17 Apnl 2007) 31,785 -
David Reid 45,000 45,000
Lord Sharman 52,000 52,000
Rolf Stomberg 48,630 52,381
Strauss Zelmck (unti] 7 December 2007) 45,000 45,000
Total 566,771 551,694
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Pension benefits

The target pension for Sir Crispin Davis at normal retirement age of 60 15 45% of salary 1n the 12 months prior to retirement
Gerard van de Aast and Mark Armour are provided with pension benefits at an accrual rate of 1/30th of salary for each year of
pensionable service, payable at normal retirement age of 60 Prior to | November 2007, Erk Engstrom was not a member of
any company pension scheme and Reed Elsevier made a contribution to Ertk Engstrom’s designated retirement account of
£93,160, equivalent to 19 5% of hus salary for the period 1 January to 31 October 2007 From 1 November 2007 contributions
to Erik Engstrom’s designated retirement account ceased and he became a member of the Reed Elsevier pension scheme

Since 1 November 2007 Erik Engstrom has accrued pension benefits at an accrual rate of 1/30th of salary for each year of
pensionable service after 1 November 2007, payable at normal retirement age of 60

On 17 July 2007, Andrew Prozes, a US-based director, vested 1n an annual penston of US$300,000 His basic pension
contimues to accrue at a rate of $42,857 per annum for each completed year of service between 17 July 2007 and

I February 2011 In addition, a hifetime benefit 1s payable to his surviving spouse equal to 50% of his vested and accrued
pension at the time of death The pension will be reduced by the value of any other retirement benefits payable by Reed
Elsevier or any former employer (other than those attributable to employee contributions) In addition, Andrew Prozes will be
entitled to recerve an enhancement to his annual pension unless he resigns or his employment 1s terminated by Reed Elsevier
for cause prior to 1 February 2011 Any such enhancement will be equal to $3,720 93 times the number of completed calendar
months between 1 July 2007 and the date of termination or, 1f earlier, 1 February 2011 For these purposes, his termination
date shall be deemed to be 12 months after he ceases employment

Patrick Trerney completed five years of service 1n November 2007 Following his retsrement on 30 January 2008, he became
entitled to draw his pension of $440,000 p a

The pension arrangements for all directors include life assurance cover whilst in employment, an entitlement to a pension n
the event of 1ll health or disabihty and a spouse’s and/or dependents’ pension on death

The ncrease 1n the transfer value of the directors’ pensions, after deduction of contributtons, 1s shown below

Transfir

vatlwe
ol increase
Increase i 1 geerued
Inerease m acerucd annual
Franslor Fransfer transfer Increase dnnuat panision
value value value dunimg Accrued accrued pLnsion durmg 1he
of atvrued of accrued the period annyal annual duoring peried (net
pension pension {ner ot pension pension the period of inflation
31 December 31 Dueember diretors Kl during (ntof  and dircctors
Are Dircctors Ducember
31 December contnbutton 2006 2007 contribubons 2007 ihe period inflavon)  contributions)
2007 ; £ £ £) £ £ i 3
Gerard van de Aast 50 5,587 §,074,289 1,379,993 300,117 130,358 28,342 23,844 246,445
Mark Armour 53 5,587 2,866,803 3,466,035 593,645 253,922 30,824 21,023 281,381
Sir CI"lSpln Davis 58 5,587 7.361,487 9,416,905 2,049,831 446,087 72,218 55,768 1,171,671
Enk Engstrom 44 940 - 28,306 27,366 3,362 3,362 3,362 27,366
Andrew Proze5(1) 6] - - 2,310,864 2,310,864 170,092 170,092 170,092 2,310,864
Patrick Tiermey 62 - 2,089,880 2,502,228 412,348 190,933 22,000 22,000 285,385

(1) The transfer value of Andrew Prozes pension reflects his entitement to an annual pension of $300,000 which, having compteted seven years of service, vested
on 17 July 2007 No contractual entitlernent to the pension existed pnor 1o the vesting date In addition the transfer value also reflects the pro-rata increase in his
pension entitiemen? sinca July 2007 up to 31 December 2007 as set out above The latter 1s subject to reduction in certain crcumstances of termination

Transfer values have been calculated 1n accordance with the guidance note GN11 published by the UK Institute of Actuanes
and Faculty of Actuanes

The transfer value 1n respect of individual directors represents a hiabihty 1n respect of directors’ pensions entitlement, and 15
not an amount paid or payable to the director
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Share-based awards in Reed Elsevier

Details of options and restricted shares held by directors in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV during the period are
shown below Other than n relation to the application of the retirement rules to Patrick Tierney’s share-based awards, there
have been no changes 1n the options or restricted shares held by directors at the date of this report

In Reed Elsevier PLC

Exercised/ Market
2004-2006 Granted vested price at
I January  performance during Option during  exerciseor 31 December Exercisable Exercisable
2007 adjustment the vear price the year  vesting date 2007 from unti
Gerard van de Aast
- ESOS 50,940 638 00p 50,940 | Dec 2003 1 Dec 2010
49,317 659 00p 49,317 23 Feb2004 23 Feb 2011
58,000 600 00p 58,000 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012
124,956 487 25p 124,956 19 Feb2007 19 Feb 2014
120,900 533 50p 120,900 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
127,662 530 50p 127,662 13 Mar 2609 13 Mar2016
122,536 644 50p 122,536 15 Feb20i0 15 Feb2017
- BIP 3217 Ntl 31,217 605 00p -
18,633 Nil 18,633 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009
— LTIP (options) 229,087 4,868 487 25p 233,955 19 Feh 2007 19 Feb 2014
— LTIP (shares) 104,130 2,212 Nil 106,342 578 00p —
70,364 Nit 70,364 19 Apr2009 19 Apr2009
57,898 Nil 57,898 15Feb 2010 15 Feb2010
Total 985,206 7,080 180,434 137,559 1,035,161
Mark Armour
-ESOS 52,000 565 75p 52,000 607 00p -
66,900 523 00p 66,900 17 Aug 2001 17 Aug 2008
33,600 537 50p 33,600 21 Feb 2003 19 Apr2009
88,202 436 50p 88,202 607 00p -
62 974 659 00p 62,974 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 2011
74,000 600 00p 74,000 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012
104,319 451 50p 104,319 607 00p -
155,147 487 25p 155,147 607 00p —
150,422 533 50p 150,422 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
158,836 530 50p 158,836 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
130,740 644 50p 130,740 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb2017
- BIP 19,225 Nil 19,225 605 00p -
21,861 Nil 21,861 14 Apr2008 14 Apr2008
21,653 Nil 21,653 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009
19,859 Nil 19,859 4 Apr 2010 4 Apr2610
- LTIP (options) 284,437 6,044 487 25p 290,481 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb2014
~ LTIP (shares) 129,289 2,747 Nil 132,036 578 00p —
75,075 Nil 75,075 19 Apr2009 19 Apr2009
61,775 Nil 61,775 15Feb 2010 15 Feb2010
-SAYE 4,329 377 60p 4,329 1 Aug 2009 31 Jan 2010
Total 1,502,269 8,791 212,374 550,929 1,172,505
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In Reed Elsevier PLC continued

Exercised/ Market
2004-2006 Granted vested price at
| January  performance dunng Option during Exercise or 31 December Exercisable Exercisable
2007 adjustment the year price the year vesting date 2007 from until
Sir Crispin Dawvis
-ESQS 160,599 467 00p 160,599 21 Feb 2003 1 Sept 2009
80,300 467 00p 80,300 | Sept 2003 1 Sept 2009
80,300 467 00p 80,300 | Sept 2004 1 Sept 2009
171,821 436 50p 171,821 2 May 2003 2 May 2010
122,914 659 00p 122,914 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 2011
148,500 600 00p 148,500 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012
209,192 451 50p 209,192 21 Feb 2006 21Feb 2013
305,303 487 25p 305,303 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
292,409 533 50p 292,409 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
305,824 530 50p 305,824 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
251,730 644 50p 251,730 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2017
- BIP 39,554 Nil 39,554 605 00p —
86,042 Nil 86,042 14 Apr2008 14 Apr 2008
42,092 Nil 42,092 4 Apr2009 4 Apr 2009
74,708 Nil 74,708 4 Apr2010 4 Apr2010
—LTIP (options) 559,722 11,894 48725p 571,616 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
- LTIP (shares) 254,419 5,406 Nil 259,825 578 00p -
144,550 N 144,550 19 Apr2009 19 Apr 2009
118,942 Ni 118,942 15 Feb2010 15 Feb 2010
- SAYE 3,793 424 40p 3,793 1 Aug2011 3] Jan 2012
Total 3,007,334 17,300 445,380 299,379 3,170,635
Enk Engstrom
- ES0S 63,460 478 00p 63460 23 Aug2007 23 Aug 2014
154,517 533 50p 154,517 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
178,895 530 S0p 178,895 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
130 060 644 50p 130,060 I5 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2057
-BIP 14,020 Nil 14,020 14 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008
— LTIP (options) 318,398 6,765 478 00p 325163 23 Aug2007 23 Aug 2014
~ LTIP (shares) 144,726 3075 Nil 147,801 578 00p -
82,092 Nil 82,092 19 Apr2009 19 Apr 2009
61,453 Nil 61,453 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2010
— Restricted 38,593 Nil 38,593 591 50p _
shares
Total 994,701 9,840 191,513 186 394 1 009,660
Andrew Prozes
—ESO8 188,281 566 00p 188,281 9 Aug 2003 9 Aug 2010
83,785 659 00p 83,785 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 2011
103,722 600 00p 103,722 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012
132,142 45{ 50p 132,142 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2013
162,666 487 25p 162,666 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
154,517 533 50p 154,517 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
182,303 530 50p 182,303 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
132,537 644 50p 132,537 I5 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2017
—BIP 20,104 Nil 20,104 605 00p -
23,756 Nil 23,756 14 Apr2008 14 Apr 2008
26,400 Nil 26,400 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009
21,548 Nil 21,548 4 Apr2010 4 Apr2010
— LTIP (options) 268,221 6,337 487 25p 304,558 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
— LTIP (shares) 135,555 2,880 Nil 138,435 578 00p -
83,656 Nil 83,656 19 Apr2009 19 Apr 2009
62,623 Nil 62,623 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2010
Total 1,595,108 9217 216,708 158,539 1,662,494
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Exercised/ Market
2004-2006  Granted vested price at
1 Januvary  performance during Option during Exerciseor 31 December Exercisable Exercisable
2007 adjustment _ the year price the year vestingdate 2007 from until
Patrick Tierney
—ESOS 371,426 45] 50p 371,426 632 Tip -
162,666 487 25p 162,666 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
154,517 533 50p 154,517 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
175,488 530 50p 175,488 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
121,628 644 50p 121 628 15 Feb2010 15 Feb2017
—BIP 19,572 Nil 19,572 605 00p -
24,156 Nil 24,156 14 Apr2008 14 Apr2008
8,124 Nil 8,124 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr2009
8,012 Nil 8,012 4 Apr2010 4 Apr2010
— LTIP (opticns) 298,221 (100,259) 487 25p 90,000 636 00p 107,962 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb2014
— LTIP (shares) 135,555 (45,573} Nil 89,982 578 00p -
80,528 Nil 80,528 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009
57,412 Nil 57,412 15Feb2010 15 Feb 2010
Total 1,430,253 (145,832) 187,052 570,980 900,493

The praportion of the target award that may vest in 2009 and 2010 under LTIP 1s subject to the annual growth m Adjusted
EPS and relative TSR measured against a group of competitor companies during the performance period The numbers of
LTIP shares included 1n the above table are calculated by reference to an assumed achievement of 10% per annum averaged
compound growth in Adjusted EPS and median TSR, which would result in 100% of the award vesting Depending on actual
Adjusted EPS growth and TSR, the proportion of the award that may vest could be lower or higher

Options under the SAYE scheme, in which all eligible UK employees are mvited to participate, are granted at a maximum
discount of 20% to the market price at tume of grant They are normally exercisable after the expiry of three or five years from
the date of grant No performance targets are attached to these option grants as 1t 15 an all-employee scheme

‘The middle market price of a Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share on the date of the 2007 award under BIP and LTIP was

617 00p and 644 50p, respectively

The middle market price of a Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share during the year was in the range 558 00p to 689 50p and at 31

December 2007 was 679 50p
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In Reed Elsevier NV

DIRECTORS® REMUNERATION REPORT

Exercised/ Market
2004-2006 Granted vested price at
I January  performance duning Option during Exercise or 3] December Exercisable Exercisable
2007 adjustment the year price the year vesting date 2007 from until
Gerard van de Aast
-ES0S8 35,866 €14 87 35,866 1 Dec 2003 1 Dec 2010
35,148 €14 75 35,148 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 2011
40,699 €1394 40,699 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012
85,805 €10 57 85,805 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
82,478 €1131 82,478 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
85,775 €1147 85,775 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
80,928 €14 51 80,928 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2017
- BIP 26,347 Nit 26,347 t4 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008
12,311 Nil 12311 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009
29 483 Nit 20483 4 Apr2010 4 Apr 2010
- LTIP (options) 157,309 3,342 €10 57 160,651 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
—LTIP (shares) 71,504 1,519 Nl 73,023 €1293 -
46,332 Nil 46,332 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009
38,238 Nil 38,238 I5 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2010
Tatal 679,574 4,861 148,649 73,023 760,061
Mark Armour
- ESOS 20,244 €13 55 20,244 2] Feb 2003 19 Apr 2009
61,726 €10 73 61,726 €1327 -
44,882 €14 75 44,882 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 2011
51,926 €13 94 51,926 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012
74,276 €934 74,276 €13 27 -
106,536 €10 57 106,536 €1327 -
102,618 €113} 102,618 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
106,720 €1147 106,720 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
86,347 €14 51 86,347 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2017
—-BIP 12,842 Nil 12,842 €1325 -
15,098 Nil 15,09% 14 Apr2008 14 Apr 2008
14,306 Nil 14,306 4 Apr2009 4 Apr 2009
13,371 Nil 13,371 4 Apr2010 4 Apr2010
- LTIP (options) 195,317 4,150 €10 57 199,467 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
— LTIP (shares) 88,780 1,886 Nil 90,666 €1293 -
49,434 Nil 49,434 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009
40,799 Nil 40,799 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2010
Total 944,705 6,036 140517 346,046 745212
Sir Crispin Davis
- ESQS 95,774 €12 00 95,774 21 Feb 2003 | Sept 2009
47,888 €12 00 47,888 i Sept 2003 | Sept 2009
47,888 €12 00 47,888 1 Sept 2004 | Sept 2009
120,245 €10 73 120,245 2 May 2003 2 May 2010
87,601 €14 75 87,601 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 2011
104,204 €1394 104,204 22 Feb 2005 22 Feb 2012
148,946 €934 148,946 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2013
209,645 €10 57 209,645 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
199,481 €113) 199,481 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
205,480 €17 47 205,480 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
166,254 €14 51 166,254 15 Feb 2010 13 Feb 2017
—-BIP 26,421 Nil 26,421 €1325 -
27,810 Nil 27,810 4 Apr2009 4 Apr 2009
— LTIP (opuions) 384,349 8,167 €10 57 392,516 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
— LTiP (shares) 174,704 3,712 Nil 178,416 €1293 -
95,181 Nil 95,181 19 Apr2009 19 Apr 2009
78,555 Nil 78,555 15 Feb 2010 i5 Feb 2010
Total 1,975,617 11,879 244,809 204,837 2,027,468
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Exercised/ Market
2004-2006 Granted vested price at
| Janvary  performance during Option during Exercise or 31 December Exercisable Exercisable
2007 adjustment the year price the year vesting date 2007 from unti
Erik Engstrom
- ESOS 43,866 €10 30 43,866 23 Aug 2007 23 Aug 2014
105,412 €11 31 105,412 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
120,198 €11 47 120,198 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
85,897 €14 51 85897  15Feb 2010 15 Feb 2017
- BIP 29,442 Nil 29,442 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009
27,572 Nil 27,572 4 Apr 2010 4 Apr 2010
— LTIP (options) 220,090 4,676 €10 30 224,766 23 Aug 2007 23 Aug 2014
~ LTIP (shares) 104,040 2,125 Nil 102,165 €12 93 -
54,055 Nil 54,055 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009
40,586 Nil 40,586 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2010
- Restnicted shares 26,677 Nil 26,677 €13 02 -
Total 699,780 6,801 154,055 128,842 731,794
Andrew Prozes
-ESOS 131,062 €13 60 131,062 9 Aug 2003 9 Aug 2010
59,714 €14 75 59,714 23 Feb 2004 23 Feb 2011
72783 €1394 72,783 22 Feb 2005 22Feb 2012
94,086 €9 34 94,086 21 Feb 2006 21 Feb 2013
111,699 €10 57 111,699 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
105412 €1131 105,412 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
122,487 €1147 122,487 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
87,533 €14 51 87,533 15 Feb 2010 15Feb 2017
- BIP 13,612 Nil 13,612 €13125 -
16,522 Nil 16,522 14 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008
17,636 Nl 17,636 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009
14,574 Nil 14,574 4 Apr 2010 4 Apr 2610
- LTIP {options) 204,782 4,351 €10 57 209,133 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
— LTIP {shares) 93,083 1,978 Nit 95,061 €1293 -
55,085 Nil 55,085 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009
41,359 Nil 41,359 I5 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2010
Total 1,007,963 6,329 143,466 108,673 1,139,085
Patrick Tierney
-ESQS 266 258 €934 266,258 €14 08 -
111,699 €10 57 111,699 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2314
105,412 €11 31 105412 17 Feb 2008 17 Feb 2015
117,908 €147 117,908 13 Mar 2009 13 Mar 2016
80,329 €14 51 80,329 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2017
-BIP 13,252 Nl 13,252 €13 25 -
16,300 Nil 16,800 14 Apr 2008 14 Apr 2008
5426 Nil 5,426 4 Apr 2009 4 Apr 2009
5,420 Nil 5,420 4 Apr 2010 4 Apr 2010
~ LTIP {options} 204,782 (68,846) €10 57 60,000 €1319 75,936 19 Feb 2007 19 Feb 2014
— LTIP (shares) 93,083 (31,29%) Nl 61,788 €1293 -
53,025 Nit 53,025 19 Apr 2009 19 Apr 2009
37917 Nil 37,917 15 Feb 2010 15 Feb 2010
Total 987,645 (100,141) 123,666 401,298 609,872
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

The proportion of the target award that may vest in 2009 and 2010 under LTIP 15 subject to the annual grewth 1n Adjusted
EPS and relative TSR measured agaimnst a group of competitor companies during the performance period The numbers of
LTIP shares tncluded in the above table are calculated by reference to an assumed achievement of 10% per annum averaged
compound grewth in Adjusted EPS and median TSR, which would result in 100% of the award vesting Depending on actual
Adjusted EPS growth and TSR, the proportion of the award that may vest could be lower or higher

The market price of a Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share on the date of the 2007 award under BIP and LTIP was €13 52 and
€14 51, respectively

The market price of a Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share during the year was in the range €11 49 to €14 89 and at 31 December
2007 was €13 65

Shareholdings in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV

ordinary shares ordinary shares

| January 31 December t January 31 December

2007(1) 2007 2007(1) 2007

Gerard van de Aast 39,169 124,287 57,941 120,523
Mark Armour 112,007 112,378 47,150 47,461
Dien de Boer-Kruyt - - — -
Sir Crispin Davis 567,174 787,577 324,344 445,197
Mark Elliott - - — —
Ertk Engstrom 29,479 79,379 73,415 219,867
Jan Hommen - - — -
Lisa Hook - — - -
Robert Polet - - - -
Andrew Prozes 123,740 230,981 95,954 169,334
David Reid — - - -
Lord Sharman - - - -
Rolf Stomberg - - - -
Patrick Tierney 72,212 37416 48,090 25,448

(1) On date of appotniment 1f subsequent to 1 January 2007

Employee Benefit Trust

Any ordinary shares required to sausfy enutlements under nil cost restricted share awards are provided by the Employee
Benefit Trust (EBT) from market purchases As a potential beneficiary under the EBT 1n the same way as other employees of
Reed Elsevier, each executive director 1s deemed to be interested n all the shares held by the EBT which, at 31 December
2007, amounted to 18,723,830 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares (1 43% of 1ssued share capital} and 10,100,765 Reed
Eisevier NV ordinary shares (1 25% of 1ssued share capital)

On 7 January 2008 the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordmnary shares 1n 1ssue were consolidated on the basis of
58 new ordinary shares for every 67 existing ordinary shares held The deemed interests of the directors in the shares held by
the EBT, together with their personal interests as shown above, were adjusted on 7 January 2008 in accordance with the
consolidation ratio

Approved by the board of Reed Elsevier Group plc on 20 February 2008

Signed on behalf of the Remuneration Commuitee by Stephen ) Cowden, Company Secretary

gzsktgj@wsu
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the members of Reed Elsevier Group ple

We have auduted the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group ple for the vear ended 31 December 2007 (“'the
consolidated financial statements™) which comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated cash flow statement
the consohdated balance sheet the consohidated statement of recognised income and eapense the consolidated shareholders'
equity reconcthation the group accounting pehicies, and the related notes 1 to 35 These consolidated financial statements
have been piepared undet the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the company financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended 31 December
2007

This report 15 made solely to the company s members as a body. in accordance with section 2335 of the Companies Act 1985
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditors report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume
1esponsibility to anyone other than the company and the company s membeis as a body. for our audit work, for this report or
for the epimons we have formed

Respective responsimhities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for prepat ing the Annual Report and the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and Intetnational Financial Reporting Standards (II'RSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out tn the
statement of directors’ responsibilities

Qur responsibility 15 10 audit the consohdated financial statements 1n accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation We report to you it, in o opimion the duectors’ 1eport 18 consistent with the consolidated financial
statements The mformation given 1n the Duectors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Operating and
Financial Review that 1s cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors' Repont

[n addition we report to you If 1n our opinion, we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our
audit orif informatton specitied by law regarding directors remuneration and transactions with the company and other
members of the group 1s not disclosed

We read the other informauon contamned 1n the annual report, as described in the contents section and consider whether 1t 15
consistent with the audited consohdated financial statements We consider the implications for our report if we become aware
of any apparent nusstatements or material inconsistencies with the consohdated financial statements Qur responsibihities do
not extend to any further information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opimon

We conducted our audit m accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
consohidated financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are approprniate to
the company s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and perfoimed our audit so as to obtaimn all the mformation and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the consolidated financial statements are free
trom material misstatement whether caused by fraud o1 other irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of mformation 1n the consohdated financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the members of Reed Elsevier Group plc
Opimon
In our opmion

* the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view i accordance with IFRS, as adopted fo1 use in the
Ewopean Union, of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and olits profit for the year then ended

* the consohdated financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and

A the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the consohdated financial statements

Oonﬁ—o aS TM
Deloite & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
L.ondon
20 February 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Revenue - continuing operations 1 4,534 4,458
Cost of sales (1,606) (1,587)
Gross profit 2,928 2,871
Selling and distribution costs (934) (921)
Administration and other expenses (1,160) (1.154)
Operating profit before joint ventures 834 796
Share of results of joint ventures 16 18
Operating profit - continuing operations 3 850 814
Finance income ] 36 20
Finance costs 8 (454) (421)
Net finance costs (418) (401}
Disposals and other non operating items ] 98 (4]
Profit hefore tax - continuing operations 3 530 412
Taxation 10 112 (712)
Net profit from continuing operations 642 340
Net profit from discontineed operations 2 309 33
Net profit for the year 951 373
Aftributable to
Parent company's shareholders 948 37
Minority interests 3 2
Net profit for the year 931 373

The historical cost profits and losses are not materially different from the results disclosed above
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006

Note £m £m
Cash flow from operating activities - continuing operations
Cash generated from operations 12 1,144 1,183
Interest received 22 8
Interest paid (115) (122)
Net interest paid to Reed Elsevier NV (46) (6)
Net interest paid by Reed Elsevier PLC 3 3
Net interest paid to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group (287) (292)
Tax paid (184) (156)
Net cash from operating activities 537 618
Cash flows from investing activities - continumg operations
Acquisitions 2 (327) (163)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (64) (68)
Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets (80) (99)
Purchases of investments (4) 9
Net purchases of shares 1n Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV (75) 67y
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 2
Proceeds from other disposals 240 48
Dividends received from joint ventures 12 16
Net cash used in investing activities (292) (340)
Cash flows from financing activities - continuing operations
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent company (1,816) (1,355)
Increase in net borrowings from shareholders and fellow affiliates 1,709 966
Net movement 1n bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 15 52
Issuance of other loans - 407
Repayment of other loans (62) (308)
Repayment of finance leases (12) (11)
Net cash used 10 financing activities (166) (249)
Net cash from discontinued operations 2 1,912 57
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1z 1,991 86
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At 1 January 322 244
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,991 86
Exchange translation differences 32 (8)
At 31 December 2,345 322
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Nota im tm
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 2,464 2 804
[niangible assets 16 1,950 2323
[nvestments 1 joint ventures 17 116 73
Other investments 17 340 210
Propeity plant and equipment 18 238 298
Net pension assets 6 183 20
Deterred tax assets 20 137 169
5,428 6 097
Current assets
Inventories and pre-publication costs 21 268 631
I'rade and other receivables 2 1,134 1.206
Drvative financial instruments 194 161
Amounts owed by Reed Elsevier PLC - 38
Amounts owed by the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 55 131
Cash and cash equivalents 2,345 322
3.996 2 489
Assets held for sale 23 341 -
Total assets 9,765 RIRETY
Current habilities
Irade and other payables 24 1,926 1913
Dervative financial instruments 16 5
Boriowings 25 554 232
Amounts owced to Reed Elsevier NV 1,377 407
Amounts owed to Reed Elsevier PLC 1,520 942
Amounts owed to Reed Holding BV 16 -
Amounts owed to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 982 867
! anation 670 400
7.061 3 766
Non-current iabilities
Bonowings 25 1,348 1 698
Amounts owed Lo the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 4,030 4 019
Delaned tay hiabudities 20 639 323
Nt punsion abligations 8 133 256
Provisions 27 21 28
6,221 6 824
Liabihities associated with assets held for sale 23 84 -
Tatal liabilities 13,360 1T 390
et Nabilities XA
Capital and reserves
Shaie capital 29 - -
Shate premium 0 324 324
I ranslation reserve 31 216 141
(Jther 1eseives 2 (4,152) (3482
Consohdated shareholders' equity (3,612) (3017
Minority inkerests 11 13
Total equity (3,601 (3 00:H

Approved by the board of Reed Elsevier Group plc, 20 February 2008

Wed ez

M H Armour
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Net profit for the year 951 373
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (71) 264
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes ] 224 139
Fair value movements on available for sale investments (6) 3
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges 12 52
Tax recognised directly m equity 10 (52) (60)
Net income recognised directly in equity 107 398
Cumulative exchange differences on disposal of foreign operations 148 -
Cumulative fair value movements on disposal of available for sale investments ) -
Transfer to net profit from hedge reserve (net of tax) 21) (9}
Total recogmsed income and expense for the year 1,178 762
Attributable to
Parent company's shareholders 1,175 760
Minority interests 3 2
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,178 762
CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY RECONCILIATION
For the year ended 31 December 2007
2007 2006
Note £m £m
Total recogmsed net income attributable to parent company's shareholders 1175 760
Dividends declared and paid 14 (1,816) (1,355}
Increase 1n share based remuneration reserve 46 49
Net decrease in consolidated shareholders' equity (595) (546)
Consolidated shareholders’ equity at 1 January (3,017) (2,471)
Consolidated shareholders' equity at 31 December (3,612) (3,017
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Reed Elsevier Group plc financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

The Reed Elsevier Group plc accounting policies under IFRS are set out below

In addstion to the figures required to be reported by applicable accounting standards, adjusted profit figures have been presented as
an additional performance measure Adjusted figures are shown before the amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition
ntegration costs, disposals and other non operating items Adjusted operating profits are also grossed up to exclude the equity
share of taxes in joint ventures

Foreign exchange translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevaitling on the date of the transaction At each
balance sheet date, monetary assets and habilities that are denominated 1n foreign cutrencies are retranslated at the rate
prevailing on the balance sheet date Exchange differences anising are recorded 1n the income statement other than where
hedge accounting applies (see Financial Instruments)

Assets and habilities of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and
expense 1items and cash flows of foreign operations are translated at the average exchange rate for the period Significant
individual items of mcome and expense and cash flows in foreign operations are translated at the rate prevaihing on the date of
transaction Exchange differences ansing are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve When foreign
operations are disposed of, the related cumuiative translation differences are recognized withm the income statement in the
period

Reed Elsevier Group plc uses derivative financial instruments, primarnly forward contracts, to hedge 1ts exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks Details of Reed Elsevier Group ple’s accounting policies n respect of derivative financial instruments
are set out below

Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of sales less anticipated returns on transactions completed by performance, excluding
customer sales taxes and sales between the combimned businesses

Revenues are recognised for the various categories of turnover as follows subscriptions — on periodic despatch of subscribed
product or rateably over the period of the subscription where performance 1s not measurable by despatch, circulation — on
despatch, advertising — on publication or over the period of online display, exhibitions — on occurrence of the exhibition,
educational testing contracts — over the term of the contract on percentage completed against contract milestones

Where sales consist of two or more mdependent components whose value can be reliably measured, revenue 15 recognised on
each component as 1t 15 completed by performance, based on attribution of relative value

Employee benefits

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other post-retirement employee benefits 15 determined using the projected
unit credit method and charged 1n the income statement as an operating expense, based on actuarial assumptions reflecting
market conditions at the beginning of the financial year Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 1n full 1n the statement of
recogmised income and expense 1n the pertod 1n which they occur Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent
that benefits have vested, or, if not vested, on a straight line basis over the period until the benefits vest

Net pension obligations n respect of defined benefit schemes are included in the balance sheet at the present value of scheme
liabilities, less the fair value of scheme assets Where schemes are 1n surplus, 1 & assets exceed habilities, the net pension
assets are separately ncluded i the balance sheet Any net pension asset 1s imited to the extent that the asset 15 recoverable
through reductions in future contnbutions
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The expense of defined contribution pension schemes and other employee benefits 1s charged in the income statement as
incurred

Share based remuneration

The fair value of share based remuneration 1s determined at the date of grant and recognised as an expense in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the vesting pertod, taking account of the estimated number of shares that are expected to
vest Market based perfermance criteria are taken into account when determining the fair value at the date of grant Non-
market based performance criteria are taken into account when estimating the number of shares expected to vest The fair
value of share based remuneration 1s determined by use of 2 binomial or Monte Carlo simulation mode! as appropnate All
Reed Elsevier Group plc group's share based remuneration 1s equity settled by the ultimate holding companies, Reed Elsevier PLC
and Reed Elsevier NV, and 1s accounted for as equity settled in Reed Elsevier Group plc

Borrowing costs

All interest on borrowings 1s expensed as incurred The cost of 1ssuing borrowings 1s expensed over the life of the borrowings
using the effective interest method

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable on the current year taxable profits, adjustments in respect of prior year
taxable profits, and the movements on deferred tax that are recognised 1n the mmcome statement

The tax payable on current year taxable profits 1s calculated using the applicable tax rates that have been enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is the tax arising on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that, based on current forecasts, 1t 15 probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised Deferred tax 1s not recognised on temporary differences arising m respect of
goodwill that 1s not deductible for tax purposes

Deferred tax 1s calculated using tax rates that are expected to apply 1 the period when the iability 1s expected to be settled or
the asset realised Full provision 1s made for deferred tax which would become payable on the distribution of retained profits
from foreign subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

Movements tn deferred tax are charged or credited 1n the income statement, except when they relate to 1items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also recogmsed 1n equity Deferred tax credits in respect of share
based remuneration are recognised tn equity to the extent that expected tax deductions exceed the related expense

Goodwill

On the acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase consideration 1s allocated between the net tangible and intangible
assets on a fair value basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill Goodwill arising on acquisitions

also includes amounts corresponding to deferred tax habilities recognised in respect of acquired intangble assets

Goodwill 1s recogmised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment 1s recogmised immediately
in the income statement and not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary or business, the atthibutable amount of goodwill 1s included 1n the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated 1n the balance sheet at their fair value as at the date of
acquisttion, less accumulated amortisation Internally generated intangible assets are stated n the balance sheet at the directly

attributable cost of creation of the asset, less accumulated amortisation
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Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise market related assets (e g trade marks, imprints,
brands), customer related assets (e g subscription bases, customer lists, customer relationships), editorial content, software
and systems (e g application infrastructure, product delivery platforms, in-process research and development), contract based
assets (e g publishing rights, exhibition rights, supply contracts), and other ntangible assets Internally generated mntangible
assets typically compnse software and systems development where an 1dentifiable asset 1s created that 1s probable to generate
future economic benefits

Intangible assets, other than brands and imprints determined to have indefinite lives, are amortised systematically over therr
estimated useful lives The estimated useful lives of intangible assets with finite lives are as follows market and customer
related assets — 3 to 40 years, content, software and other acquired intangible assets — 3 to 20 years, and internally developed
intangible assets — 3 to 10 years Brands and imprints determined to have indefinite ives are not amortised and are subject to
impairment review at least annually

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated 1n the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation No depreciation 1s
provided on freehold land Freehold buildings and long leases are depreciated over their estimated useful livesup to a
maximum of 50 years Short leases are written off over the duration of the lease Depreciation 1s provided on other assets ona
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows leasehold improvements — shorter of life of lease and 10 years,
plant — 3 to 20 years, office furniture, fixtures and fittings — 5 to 10 years, computer systems, communicatton networks and
equipment — 3 to 7 years

Investments

Investments, other than investments in joint ventures and associates, are stated in the balance sheet at farr value Investments
held as part of the venture caputal portfolio are classified as held for irading, with changes in farr value reported through the
income statement All other mvestments are classified as available for sale with changes in fair value recognised directly 1n
equity until the mvestment 18 disposed of or 1s determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gam or loss previously
recognized n equity 1s brought into the net profit or loss for the period All items recognised n the income statement relating
to investments, other than investments 1n joint ventures and associates, are reported as non operating 1tems

Available for sale investments and venture capital investments held for trading represent investments in listed and unhsted
securities The fair value of listed securities 1s determined based on quoted market prices, and of unlisted securities on
management’s estimate of fair value based on standard valuation techniques

Shares of the parent companies, Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV that are purchased by the Reed Elsevier Group plc
Employee Benefit Trust are classified as investments available for sale and are held at market value with changes 1n fair value
recognised directly 1n equity

Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method and stated in the balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in Reed Elsevier Group plc’s share of net assets, less any impairment 1n value

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, reviews are carried out of the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets and goodwill to
determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss Where the asset
does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, estimates are made based on the cash flows of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least
annually and whenever there 15 any indication that the agset may be impaired

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 1s estimated to be less than 1ts net carrying amount, the net

carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit 1s reduced to 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised
immediately in the income statement
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Inventortes and pre-publication costs

Inventories and pre-publication costs are stated at the lower of cost, including appropriate attributable overhead, and estimated |
net realisable value Pre-publication costs, representing costs incurred in the origination of content prior to publication, are

expensed systematically reflecting the expected sales profile over the estimated economic lives of the related products,

generally up to five years

Leases

Assets held under leases which confer rights and obligations similar to those attaching to owned assets are classified as assets
held under finance leases and capitalised within property, plant and equipment and the corresponding habiiity to pay rentals 1s
shown net of interest in the balance sheet as obligations under finance leases The caprtalised value of the assets 1s depreciated
on a straight line basis over the shorter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned The interest
element of the lease payments 15 allocated so as to produce a constant perniodic rate of charge

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the leases Rental income
from operating leases 1s recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly hquid mvestments and are held in
the balance sheet at fair value

Assets held for sale

Assets of businesses that are available for immediate sale 1n their current condition and for which a sales process has been
imtiated are classified as assets held for sale, and are carried at the lower of amortised cost and fair value less costs to sell
Non-current assets are not deprectated or amortised following their classification as held for sale Liabilities of businesses held
for sale are also separately classified on the balance sheet

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the combined businesses that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or 1s held for sale When an operation 1s classified as discontinued,
the comparative income statement and cash flow mformation are re-presented as 1f the operation had been discontinued from
the start of the comparative period

Financial instruments

Financial mstruments comprise investments (other than tnvestments in joint ventures or associates), trade recervables, cash and
cash equivalents, payables and accruals, provisions, borrowings and derivative financial instruments

Investments (other than investments in joint ventures and associates) are classified as either held for trading or available for
sale, as described above

Trade receivables are carried in the balance sheet at invoiced value less allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts
Irrecoverable amounts are estimated based on the ageing of trade receivables, experience and circumstance

Borrowings {other than fixed rate borrowings in designated hedging relationships and for which the carrying value 15 adjusted
to reflect changes in the fair value of the hedged risk), payables, accruals and provisions are recorded at nominal value
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Dertvative financial instruments are used to hedge nterest rate and foreign exchange nisks Changes 1n the fair value of
derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recogmised (net of tax)
directly 1n equity 1n the hedge reserve If a hedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition of a
non financial asset or habihty, then, at the time that the asset or habtlity 1s recognised, the associated gams or losses on the
derrvative that had previously been recognized in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or hability For
hedges that do not result 1n the recognition of an asset or a hability, amounts deferred 1n equity are recogmised 1n the income
statement 1n the same period in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss Any ineffective portion of hedges 1s
recognised immed:ately in the income statement

Derivattve financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are classified as held for trading and recorded
in the balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value recogmsed in the income statement

Where an effective hedge 15 1n place aganst changes n the fair value of fixed rate borrowings, the hedged borrowngs are
adjusted for changes 1n fair value attributable to the risk bemg hedged with a corresponding income or expense mcluded in the
mcome statement The offsetting gans or losses from remeasuring the fair value of the related derivatives are also recognised
mn the income statement

The fair values of interest rate swaps, interest rate options, forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange contracts
represent the replacement costs calculated using market rates of interest and exchange The fair value of long term borrowings
1s calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at market rates

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, termmated or exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting At that trme, any cumulative gaimn or loss on the hedging instrument recogmsed n equity 15 either
retained 1n equity until the firm commitment or forecasted transaction oceurs, or, where a hedged transaction 1s no longer
expected to occur, 15 immedsately credited or expensed n the income statement

On adoption of 1AS39 — Financial Instruments, adjustments were made either to the carrying value of hedged items or to
equity, as appropriate, to reflect the differences between the previous UK GAAP carrying values of financial instruments and
their carrying values required to be reported under LAS39 Any transition gams or losses on financial instruments that qualified
for hedge accounting were reflected in equity and remain 1n equity until exther the forecasted transaction occurs or 1s no longer
expected to occur

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when a present obligation exists as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that settiement of the
obligation will be required Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date

Critical judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The most significant accounting policies in determining the financial condition and results of the Reed Elsevier Group plc, and
those requiring the most subjective or complex judgment, relate to the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets, share based
remuneration, pensions and taxation The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed at least twice a
year, the key areas of judgment bemg 1n relation to the forecast long term growth rates and the appropriate discount rates to be
applied to forecast cash flows The charge for share based remuneration 15 determined based on the fair value of awards at the
date of grant by use of binomial or Monte Carlo simulation models as appropriate, which require judgments to be made
regarding share price volatility, dividend yield, risk free rates of return and expected option lives Key estimates in accounting
for defined benefit pension schemes are determined m conjunction with independent actuaries and mclude the hfe expectancy
of members, expected salary and pension increases, inflation, the return on scheme assets and the rate at which future pension
payments are discounted Reed Elsevier Group plc’s policy 15 to make provision for tax uncertamties where 1t 15 considered
probable that tax payments may arise

Standards effective for the year
Adoption of IFRS7 — Financial instruments Disclosures which contams various requirements concerning the disclosure of
financial instruments became effective for financial years begmning on or after 1 January 2007 The combined financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 have adopted the requirements of IFRS7 for the first ime The adoption of
this standard has not significantly impacted the presentation of the combined financial statermnents
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Adoption of Amendment to IAS] — Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures The amendment to 1ASI,
which introduces disclesures about an entity’s capital and how 1t 1s managed, has been adopted for the first time The
requirements of the amendment have been addressed on page 6 of the Directors’ report

Standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective

New accounting standards and amendments and their expected impact on the future accounting policies and reporting of Reed
Elsevier Group plc are set out below

IFRS8 — Operating Segments (effective for the 2009 financial year) IFRS8 sets out requirements for disclosure of information
about an entity’s operating segments, its products and services, the geographical areas in which 1t operates, and i1ts major
customers IFRS8 replaces IAS14 — Segment Reporting Adoptton of this standard 1s not expected to change significantly the
disclosure of information 1n respect of Reed Elsevier Group plc’s operating segments

Amendment to IAS23 — Borrowing Costs (effective for the 2009 financial year) The amendment removes the option to
immediately recognise as an expense borrowng costs relating to assets requiring a substantial period of time to pet ready for
use or sale and requires such costs to be capitalised Adoption of this standard will change our accounting policy on borrowing
costs but 1s not expected to sigmficantly impact the presentation or disclosure of barrowing costs 1n the combined financial
statements

Amendment to [AS] — Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for the 2009 financial year) The amendment introduces
changes to the way 1n which movements in equity must be disclosed and requires an entity to separately disclose each
component of other comprehensive income not recognised 1n profit or loss The amendment also requires disclosure of the
amount of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income as well as several other minor disclosure
amendments Other than as described above, this amendment 1s not expected to significantly change the presentation of the
combined financial statements

IFRIC14 — The Limit en a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction (effective for the
2008 financial year) The interpretation clarifies how to assess the lumit in [AS19 Employee Benefits on the amount of a
defined benefit pension surplus that can be recogmised as an asset Adoption of this interpretation 1s not expected to
significantly impact the measurement, presentation or disclosure of employee benefits in the combined financial statements

Amendments to [FRS3 — Business Combtnations (effective for the 2010 financial year} The amendments introduce changes

that will require acquisition related costs to be expensed, adjustments to contingent consideration to be recognised 1n income
and allows the full goodwill method to be used when accounting for non controlling interests The most sigmificant impact of
these amendments will be the recognition of additional expenses related to acquisitions

Amendments to IAS 27 — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for the 2010 financial year) The
amendments intraduce changes to the accounting for partial dispoesals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures Adoption

of these amendments 1s not expected to sigmficantly impact the measurement, presentation or disclosure of future disposals

Additionally, a number of interpretations have been 1ssued which are not expected to have any significant impact on Reed
Elsevier Group plc’s accounting policies and reporting
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007

SEGMENT ANALYS!S

Reed Elsevier Group plc 1s a publisher and information provider organised as three business segments Elsevier, comprising
scientific, technical and medical pubhshing businesses, LexisNexis providing legal, tax, regulatory, risk management,
information analytics and business information solutions to professional, business and government customers and Reed
Business, providing information and marketing solutions to business professionals Internal reporting 1s consistent with this
orgamnisational structure Harcourt Education, which has previously been presented as a separate business segment, has been
classified as a discontinued operation and its results are presented in note 2

Adjusted operating profit figures are presented as an additional perfermance measure They are stated before the amortisation
of acquired intangible assets, acquisition mtegration costs and the equity share of taxes in joint ventures Adjusted operating
profit 1s reconciled to operating profit in note 11

Revenue Operating profit  Adjusted operating profit
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Business segment
Elsevier 1,457 1,470 374 372 441 441
LexisNexis 1,594 1,570 287 264 405 380
Reed Business 1,483 1,418 194 181 257 240
Subtotal 4,534 4,458 855 8§17 1,103 1,061
Corporate costs - - 44) a7 (44) (€¥))]
Unallocated net pension credit - - 39 34 39 34
Total 4,534 4,458 850 814 1,098 1,058
Geographical origin
North America 2,147 2,219 352 329 504 485
United Kingdom 896 828 176 168 207 197
The Netherlands 505 497 175 170 178 173
Rest of Europe 676 640 94 100 148 153
Rest of world 310 274 53 47 6l 50
Total 4,534 4,458 850 814 1,098 1,058

Revenue is analysed before the £103m (2006 £108m) share of joint ventures' revenue, of which £21m (2006
£21m) relates to LexisNexis, principally to Guffre, and £82m (2006 £87m) relates to Reed Business, principally
to exhibition joint ventures

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of £16m (2006 £i8m) included n operating profit comprises £3m
(2006 £3m) relating to LexisNex1s and £13m (2006 £15m) relating to Reed Business

The unallocated net pension credit of £39m (2006 £34m) comprises the expected return on pension scheme assets
of £196m (2006 £178m) less interest on pension scheme liabilities of £157m (2006 £144m)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

SEGMENT ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2007 2006
£m £m
Analysis of revenue by geographical market
North America 2,227 2,307
United Kingdom 601 530
The Netherlands 205 195
Rest of Europe 881 850
Rest of world 620 576
Total 4,534 4,458
Expenditure on Amortisation of
acquired goodwili and acquired intangible  Depreciation and other
intangible assets Capital expenditure assets amortisation
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Business segment
Elsevier 193 53 50 51 60 57 47 47
LexisNexis 42 79 76 95 105 104 72 70
Reed Business 128 51 30 30 55 50 27 27
Subtotal 363 183 156 176 220 211 146 144
Corporate - - - 2 - - 2 4
Total 363 183 156 178 220 211 148 148
Geographical location
North Amenca 152 98 86 110
United Kingdom 26 54 K] 34
The Netherlands - - 22 18
Rest of Europe 163 16 12 10
Rest of world 22 15 5 6
Total 363 183 156 178

Capital expendrture comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and internally developed intangible assets
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets includes the share of amortisation 1n joint ventures of £2m (2006 nil) in Reed
Business Other than the depreciation and amortisation above, non cash items of £38m (2006 £44m) relate to the recognition
of share based remuneration and comprise £8m (2006 £10m) in Elsevier, £10m (2006 £12m) 1n LexisNexis, £1 1m (2006
£14m) 1n Reed Business and £9m (2006 £8m) in Corporate
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

SEGMENT ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Total assets Total liabilities Net assets/(hiabilities)
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Business segment
Elsevier 2,364 2,331 715 700 1,649 1,631
LexisNexis 2,531 2,593 415 387 2,116 2,206
Harcourt Education (discontinued) - 1,481 - 173 - 1,308
Reed Business 1,343 1,146 606 533 737 613
Subtotal 6,238 7,551 1,736 1,793 4,502 5,758
Taxation 137 169 1,359 1,223 (1,222) (1,054)
Cash/borrowings 2,345 322 1,902 1,930 443 (1,608)
Balances with fellow associated undertakings 55 169 7,928 6,235 (7,870 (6,066)
Net pension assets/{obligations) 183 20 133 256 50 (236)
Assets and hiabilities held for sale 341 - 84 - 257 -
Other assets and habihities 466 355 227 153 239 202
Total 9,765 8,586 13,366 11,590 (3,601) (3.004)
Geographical location
North America 4,559 5,628 7,793 7,616 (3,234) (1,988)
United Kingdom 2,349 1,314 2,686 2,048 (337) (734)
The Netherlands 1,539 474 1,748 883 (209) (409}
Rest of Europe 1,030 942 915 863 115 79
Rest of world 288 228 224 180 64 48
Total 9,765 8,580 13,366 11,590 (3,601) (3,004)

Investments 1n joint ventures of £116m (2006 £73m) included in segment assets analysis above comprise £3im
{2006 £27mj) relating to LexisNexis and £85m (2006 £46m) relating to Reed Business
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Following announcement in February 2007 of the planned sale of Harcourt Education division, the division 1s presented as a
discontinued operation On 4 May 2007 the sale of the Harcourt Assessment and Harcourt Education International businesses
for $950m was announced, and on 16 July 2007 the sale of Harcourt US Schools Education businesses for $4 Obn was
announced All dispesals had completed by 31 December 2007, with the exception of Harcourt Assessment and certain
Harcourt International businesses, the disposal of which completed on 30 January 2008 Those businesses are presented in the
balance sheet as assets held for sale

2007 2006
Net profit from discontinued operations £m £m
Revenue 752 889
Operating costs (640) (846)
Operating profit and profit before tax 112 43
Taxation {31) (10}
Profit after taxation 81 33
Gan on disposals 611 -
Tax on disposals (383) -
Net profit from discontinued operations 309 33

Operating profit 1s stated after amortisation of acquired intangible assets of £9m (2006 £86m) The adjusted
operating profit, before amortisation of acquired intangible assets, of the discontinued operations was £121m
(2006 £129m)

The gain on disposals of discontinued operations relates to the completed sale of the Harcourt US Schools
Educaticn busmesses and certain of the Harcourt Education International businesses Net assets disposed comprise
£318m of goodwill, £383m ntangible assets, £39m of property, plant and equipment, £377m of inventory and
£40m of other net assets  Tax on disposals 1s stated before taking account of tax credits of £223m (2006 nil) ¢n
respect of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets and capital losses These have been realised as a result of
the disposal of discontinued operations, but recognised within continuing operations whence they first arose

2007 2006
Cash flows from discontinued operations £m £m
Net cash flow from operating activities 33 86
Net cash flow from mvesting activities 1,879 29)
Net cash flow from financing activities - -
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 1,912 57

Net cash flow from investing activities inciudes proceeds on the completed disposals of £1,933m (2006 nil) Cash
and cash equivalents diposed was £7m (2006 nil)

Reed Elsevier Group ple 51




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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OPERATING PROFIT — CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit before tax 1s stated after charging/(crediting) the followng

2007 2006

Note £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 1,182 1,177
Social security costs 143 131
Penstons ] 48 64
Share based remuneration 7 38 44
Total staff costs 1,411 1,416
Depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 16 218 211
Share of joint ventures amortisation 2 -
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 16 72 66
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18 76 81
Total depreciation and amortisation 368 358
Other expenses and income
Pre-publication costs, mventory expenses and other cost of sales 1,606 1,587
Royalties payable to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group 22 5
Operating lease rentals expense 104 105
Operatmg_ lease rentals income (15 (16)

Depreciation and amortisation charges are included within administration and other expenses
Staff costs for discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2007 were £162m (2006 £197m) for wages and

salaries, £10m (2006 £13m) for social security costs, £1 1m (2006 £15m) for pensions and £8m (2006 £5m) for share based
remuneration

Reed Elsevier Group ple 52




4

AUDITORS® REMUNERATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006

£m £m
For audit services 3.7 46
For non audit services 15 12
Total 52 58

Audrtors’ remuneration for audit services comprises £0 4m (2006 £0 3m) payable to the auditors of the parent company and
£3 3m (2006 £4 2m) payable to auditors of the parent company and their associates for the audit of the financial statements of
the operating and businesses including the review and testing of internal controls over financial reporting in accordance with
the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services comprises £0 6m (2006 £0 6m) for taxation
services, £0 7m (2006 £0 3m) for due diligence and other transaction related services and £0 2m (2006 £0 3m) for other non

audit services

PERSONNEL

At 31 December Average durning the year

Number of people employed 2007 2006 2007 2006
Business segment

Elsevier 6,800 6,900 7,000 7,000
LexisNexis 13,300 13,800 13,400 13,700
Reed Business 10,800 10,300 10,700 10,300
Subtotal 30,900 31,000 31,100 31,000
Corporate 300 200 300 200
Total 31,200 31,200 31,400 31,200
Geographical location

North America 15,500 15,700 15,600 15,600
United Kingdom 5300 5400 5,400 5,300
The Netherlands 2400 2400 2,400 2,500
Rest of Europe 4,500 4,500 4,600 4,500
Rest of world 3,500 3,200 3,400 3,300
Total 31,200 31,200 31,400 31,200

The number of people employed by discontinued operations at 31 December 2007 was 1,300 (2006 5,300) The average
number of people employed by discontinued operations during the year was 4,300 (2006 5,300)

Reed Elsevier Group ple

53




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007

PENSION SCHEMES

A number of pension schemes are operated around the world The majer schemes are of the defined benefit type with assets
held 1n separate trustee administered funds The largest schemes, which cover the majonity of employees, are in the UK, the
US and the Netherlands Under these plans, employees are entitled to retirement benefits dependent on the number of years

service provided

The principal assumptions, for the purpose of valuation under IAS19 Employee Benefits, are determined for each scheme in
conjunction with the respective schemes’ independent actuaries and are presented below as the weighted average of the
various defined benefit pension schemes

2007 2006
5.9% 53%
7 1% 7 0%
4 4% 4 2%
31% 29%
2% 2 9%

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on scheme assets
Expected rate of salary increases

Inflation
Future pENSION INcreases

The expected rates of return on individual categories of scheme assets are determined by reference to relevant market indices
The overall expected rate of return on scheme assets 15 based on the weighted average of each asset category
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

PENSION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Mortality assumptions used in assessing defined benefit obligations make allowance for future improvements 1n longevity and
have been determined by reference to applicable mortality statistics and the actuaries’ expectation for each scheme The
average life expectancies assumed n the valuation of the defined benefit obligations are set out below

2007 2006
Male Female Male Female
Average life expectancy (at 31 December) years years years years
Member currently aged 60 86 87 86 87
Member currently aged 45 86 87 86 37

The defined benefit pension expense recognised within the mcome statement comprises

2007 2006

£m £m
Service cost {including curtatlment credits of £19m (2006 £11m) 78 94
[nterest on pension scheme habilities 157 144
Expected return on scheme assets (196) (178)
Net defined benefit pension cost 39 60

The service cost includes £8m (2006 £12m) in respect of discontinued operations A total of £21m (2006 £20m) was
recognised as an expense 1n relation to defined contribution pension schemes including £3m in respect of discontinued
operations (2006 £3m) Included in gains on disposal of discontinued operations are £11m (2006 rl) of pension curtailment

credits

The amount recognmised 1n the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the start and end of the year and
the movements during the year were as follows

2007 2006
Defined Fair value of Net  Defined Fair value
benefit scheme  penston benefit of scheme Net pension
obligation assets oblhigation obligation assets  cbligation
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At start of year (3,008) 2,772 (236) (2,980) 2,575 (405)
Service cost (including curtailment credits
of £19m (2006 £11m)) (78) - (78) (94) - (94)
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (157) - (157y (144) - (144)
Expected return on scheme assets - 196 196 - 178 178
Actuarial gamn 190 34 224 40 99 139
Contributions by employer - 83 83 - 61 61
Contributions by employees 3 13 - (13) 13 -
Benefits paid 114 (110) 4 106 (102) 4
Curtailment on disposal of operations 11 - 11 - - -
Exchange translation differences Q27 30 3 77 (52) 25
At end of year (2,968) 3,018 50 (3,008 2772 (236)

The net pension surplus of £50m at 31 December 2007 comprise schemes in surplus with net pension assets of
£183m (2006 £20m) and schemes in deficit with net pension obligations of £133m (2006 £256m)
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PENSION SCHEMES (CONTINUED}

As at 31 December 2007 the defined benefit obligations comprise £2,877m (2006 £2,921m) 1n relation to funded schemes and
£91m (2006 £87m)n relation to unfunded schemes The weighted average duration of defined benefit scheme liabilities 15
19 years (2006 19 years) Deferred tax habiiities of £51m (2006 £6m) and deferred tax assets of £52m (2006 £92m) are
recognised 1n respect of the pension scheme surpluses and deficits respectively

The fair value of scheme assets held as equities, bonds and other assets, and their expected rates of return, 1s shown below

2007 2006
Expected

Expected rate  Fair value of Propertion of rate of retum Fair value of Proportion of

of retum on  scheme assets total scheme  on scheme scheme  total scheme

scheme assets im assets assets assets  £m assets

Equities 8.3% 1,904 63% 80% 1,857 67%
Bonds 4 6% 870 32% 4 4% 777 28%
Other 5 3% 144 5% 5 0% 138 5%
Total T.1% 3,018 100% 70% 2772 100%

The actual return on scheme assets for the year ended 31 December 2007 was £230m (2006 £277m)

A summary of pension balances for the four years ended 31 December 2007 15 set out below

2007 2006 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m

Fair value of scheme assets 308 2,772 2,575 2,204
Defined benefit obligations (2,968) (3,008) (2,980) (2,525)
Net pension surplusl(obllgatmns) 50 {236)  (405) (321)

Gains and losses arising on the revaluation of pension scheme assets and hiabilities that have been recognised 1n the statement
of recognised income and expense are set out below

2007 2006 2005 2004
£m £m £m £m
Gains and losses ansing during the year
Experience losses on scheme habilities 28 (30) (25) (18}
Experience gains on scheme assets 34 99 230 66
Actuarial gains/{losses) arising on the present value of scheme habilities due to
changes
- discount rates 367 198 c1n (113)
- flation {152) an - -
- life expectancy and other actuarial assumptions 3 (51) (25) (9)
224 139 37 (74}
Net cumulative gamns/(losses) at start of year 28 (11n (74 0
Net cumulative gams/(losses) at end of year 252 28 (111) (74)

Regular contributions to defined benefit pension schemes 1n 2008 are expected to be approximately £61m
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PENSION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

Valuation of the Reed Elsevier Group plc group’s pension scheme lhabilities involves judgement about uncertain events,
including the hife expectancy of the members, salary and pension increases, inflation and the rate at which the future pension
payments are discounted Estimates are used for each of these factors, determined 1n conjunction with independent actuarnies
Dufferences ansing from actual experience of future changes 1n assumptions may matenally affect future pension charges In
particular, changes 1n assumptions for discount rates, inflation and hfe expectancies would have the following approximate
effects on the annual net pension expense and the defined benefit pension obligations

£m
Increase/decrease of 0 25% 1n the discount rate
Decrease/increase in annual net pension expense 6
Decrease/increase 1n defined benefit pension obligations 133
Increase/decrease of one year 1n assumed life expectancy
Increase/decrease 1n annual net penston expense 7
Increase/decrease in defined benefit pension obligations 96
Increase/decrease of 0 25% 1n the expected inflation rate
Increase/decrease in annual net pension expernse 5 |
Increase/decrease 1n defined benefit pension obligations 106

Additionally, the annual net pension expense includes an expected return on scheme assets A 5% increase/decrease in the
market value of investments held by the defined benefit pension schemes would, absent any change in their expected long term
rate of return, increase/decrease the amount of the expected return on scheme assets by £8m and decrease/increase the amount
of the net pension surplus by £95m

SHARE BASED REMUNERATION

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group provides a number of share based remuneration schemes to directors and employees The
principal share based remuneration schemes are the Executtve Share Option Scheme (ESOS), the Long Term Incentive Plan
(L.TiP), the Retention Share Plan (RSP) and the Bonus Investment Plan (BIP) Share options granted under ESOS and LTIP
are exercisable after three years and up to ten years from the date of grant at a price equivalent to the market value of the
respective shares at the date of grant Conditional shares granted under ESOS, LTIP, RSP and BIP are exercisable after three
years for nil consideration if conditions are met Other awards principally relate to all employee share saving schemes in the
UK and the Netherlands

Share based remuneration awards are, other than 1n exceptional circumstances, subject to the condition that the employee
remains 1n employment at the time of exercise Share options and conditional shares granted under LTIP, RSP and BIP are
subject to the achievement of growth targets of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV adjusted earnings per share
measured at constant exchange rates LTIP grants made in 2006 and 2007 are variable subject to the achievement of an
additional total shareholder return performance target The numbers of share options and conditional shares included n the
tables below are calculated on the basis that 100% of the awards will vest Further details of performance conditions are given
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
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7  SHARE BASED REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

The estimated fair value of grants made 1n the two years ended 31 December 2007 are set out below The fair values of grants
are recognised 1n the income statement over the vesting period, typically three years

In respect of Reed Elsevier PLC In respect of Reed Elsevier NV Total fair
ordinary shares ordinary shares value
Weighted Werghted
average far average
Number of  valee per Number of fair value
shares award  Farvalue shares peraward Fair value
2007 grants 000 £ £m 000 £ £m £m
Share options

-ESOS 4,246 1.30 5 2,802 1.66 5 10

- Other 1,058 1,78 2 423 0.99 - 2
Total share options 5,304 1.40 7 3,225 157 5 12
Conditional shares

- ESOS 775 594 5 510 896 5 10

-LTIP 1,584 714 11 1,047 10 92 11 22

- RSP 78 5.50 - 53 778 - -

- BIP 662 5.67 4 308 8.20 3 7
Total conditional shares 3,099 6 48 20 1,918 9 88 19 39
Total 27 24 51
2006 grants
Share options

-ESOS 4,731 100 4 3,169 i27 4 8

-LTIP 3 100 - 2 130 -

- Other 1,168 148 2 243 148 - 2
Total share options 5,902 105 6 3414 131 4 10
Conditional shares

- ESOS 1,202 492 6 806 715 6 12

-LTIP 2,003 543 11 1,318 g 14 11 22

- BIP 683 507 4 280 729 2 6
Total conditional shares 3,888 4 87 21 2,404 704 19 40
Total 27 23 50
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SHARE BASED REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

The main assumptions used to determine the fair values, which have been established with advice from and data provided by
independent actuaries, are set out below

In respect of Reed In respect of Reed
Elsevier PLC ordinary  Elsevier NV ordinary
shares shares

Assumptions for grants made during the year 2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted average share price at date of grant

- ESOS £642 £532 €14.41 €1151

-LTIP £643 £536 €1445 €118

- RSP £6.39 - €14 31 -

- BIP £615 £548 €13.37 €1174

- Other £6.01 £530 €1344 €1205
Expected share price volatility 22% 22%  22% 22%
Expected option hfe 4 years 4 years d4years 4 years
Expected dividend yield 2.7% 26% 32% 31%
Risk free interest rate 56% 46% 42% 35%
Expected lapse rate 3-5%  3-5% 3-5% 3-5%

Expected share price volatility has been estimated based on relevant historic data in respect of the Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share prices Expected share option life has been estimated based on historical exercise patterns in
respect of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV share options

The share based remuneration awards outstanding as at 31 December 2007, m respect to both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV ordinary shares are set out below

ESOS LTIP Other Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of  average Number of average Numberof  average Number of average
shares  exercise shares EXEICISE shares  exercise shares exercise
Share options Reed Elsevier | ‘000 price ‘000 price 000 price ‘000 price
Qutstanding at T January 2006 57,740 £514 5,281 £488 3,518 £4 16 66,539 £507
CGranted 4,731 £532 3 £535 1,168 £424 5,902 £510
Exercised (9,691) £4 61 - - (792) £4 11 (10,483) £4 57
Forfeited (4,088) £543 (267) £4 87 (299) £4 13 (4,654) £532
Expired {500) £5 84 - - (222) £507 {722) £561
Qutstanding at 1 January 2007 48,192 £5.23 5017 £488 3373 £4.14 56,582 £5.13
Granted 4,246 £6.42 - - 1,058 £4.80 5304 £6.10
Exercised (16,724) £4.97 (2,145 £4.87 (771) £4.11 (19,640) £4.93
Forfeited (1,105) £5.04 - - (476) £4.31 (1,581) £5.24
Expired (542) £5.71 (74) £4.15  (616) £5.52

Qutstanding at 31 December 200 34,067 £5.47 2,872 £4.89 3,110 £4.34 40,049 £534

Exercisable at 31 December 200 22,121 £537 105 £4 87 91 £425 22,317 £537
Exercisable at 31 December 2( 19,704 £5.36 2,872 £4.89 50 £4.25 22,626 £5.30
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ESOS LTIP Other Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average Numberof  averape Number of average
shares  exercise shares exercise shares  exercise shares exercise
Share options Reed Elsevier ! 000 price ‘000 price 000 price 600 price
Outstanding at | January 2006 39,252 € 1133 3,626 €1058 1,881 €1205 44,759 €11 30
Granted 3,169 €115] 2 €1176 243 €1205 3414 €1155
Exercised (6,666) €998 - - (243) €1076 (6,909) €100I
Forfeited (2,799) €1213 (183) €1057 (35) €1283 (3,017) €1204
Expired - - - - - - - -
Outstanding at | January 2007 32,956 €11.,55 3,445 €10.58 1,846 €12.21 38247 €11.50
Granted 2,802 €1441 - - 423 €13.45 3,225 €1428
Exercised (10,737) €1073 (1,527) €10.57 (202) €11.50 (12,466) € 10.73
Forfeited (738) €1229 - - 23) €13.89 (761) €12.34
Expired (390) €13.28 - - - - (390) €13.28
Outstandl_ng at 31 December 200 23,893 € 12.16 1,918 €1060 2044 €1254 27855 €12.08
Exercisable at 31 December 200 15,055 € 1224 72 €1057 1,846 €1221 16,973 €1223
Exercisable at 31 December 2( 14,266 €1216 1,918 €10.60 2044 €12.54 18228 €12.04
Number of shares 000
Conditional shares: Reed Elsevier PLC ESOS LTIP RSP BIP Total
Outstanding at 1 January 2006 - 2413 2,132 1,379 5,924
Granted 1,202 2,003 - 683 3,888
Exercised 4) - (34) (22D (279)
Forfeited 49) (172 (246) (108)  (575)
QOutstanding at 1 January 2007 1,149 4,244 1,832 1,733 8,958
Granted 775 1,584 78 662 3,099
Exercised (112) (2,226) {1,698) 457) (4,493)
Forfeited (156) (170) (67) (95) (488)
Outstandm4g at 31 December 2007 1,656 3,432 145 1,843 7,076
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SHARE BASED REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
Number of shares '000

Conditional shares: Reed Elsevier NV ESOS LTIP RSP BIP Total
Outstanding at 1 January 2006 - 1,657 1,463 515 3,635
Granted 806 1,318 - 280 2,404
Exerctsed 3) - (36) (101) (140)
Forfeited (33) Q1IN (149) (45) (344)
Outstanding at 1 January 2007 770 2,858 1,278 649 5,555
Granted 510 1,047 53 308 1,918
Exercised 71y (1,523) (L,165) (199 (2,958)
Forfeited (151)  (151)  (68)  (34)  (404)
Outstandmg at 31 December 2007 1,058 2,231 98 724 4,111

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and conditional shares during 2007 was £6 21 (2006
£5 64) for Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and €13 76 (2006 €12 34) for Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

average average

Numberof remamng Number of remamning

share options period till share options period tall

under option expiry under option expiry

Range of exercise prices for outstanding share opltions *000 (years) 000 (years)
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares (pence)

351-400 668 1.6 1,345 14

401-450 2,652 24 4,733 30

451-500 12,356 48 23,953 55

301-550 12,716 7.1 15,462 78

551-600 4,331 43 6,639 47

601-650 4,280 8.8 852 28

651-700 3,046 32 3,598 41

Total 40,049 48 56,582 56

Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares (euros)

901-10 00 1,954 51 4,146 62

10 01-11 00 6,791 58 14,595 51

1101-12 00 8,912 7.2 10,589 80

1201-13 00 402 53 307 56

13 01-14 00 4,269 46 5,163 48

14 01-15 00 5,041 65 2,896 42

1501-16 00 486 2.3 551 27

Total 27,855 6.0 38,247 59

Share options are expected, upon exercise, to be met principally by the 1ssue of new ordinary shares but may also be met by
the 1ssue of shares held by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) (see note 17) Conditional shares will
be met by shares held by the EBT
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8 NETFINANCE COSTS

2007 2006
£m £m
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 2n 27
Interest on other loans 97) (93)
[nterest payable to Reed Elsevier NV (48) 3
Interest payable to Reed Elsevier PLC - -
Interest payable to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group (284) (293)
Interest on obligations under finance leases (1) (1)
Total borrowing costs (451) 417
Losses on derivatives not designated as hedges (2) (2)
Fair value losses on interest rate derivatives formerly designated as cash
flow hedges transferred from equity 6} (2)
Finance costs {454) {421)
Interest on bank deposits 26 10
Gans on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges 5 5
Interest receivable and similar income from Reed Elsevier PLC ] 4
Interest receivable from the Elsevier Reed Finance BV group - 1
Finance income 36 20
Net finance costs {418) (401)
Finance costs include £1m (2006 £2m) transferred from the hedge reserve
9  DISPOSALS AND OTHER NON OPERATING ITEMS
2007 2006
£m £m

Revaluation of held for trading investments (2) 1
Gain/(loss) on disposal of businesses and other assets 100 (2)
Gain/(loss) on disposals and other non operatmg items 98 (1)

The gain on disposal of businesses in 2007 relates principally to the disposal of MDL Information Systems by Elsevier and
certain intangible assets by Reed Exhibitions and Elsevier to the Elsevier Reed Finance BV Group Proceeds received in
respect of disposals of businesses and other assets were £240m (2006 £48m)
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10 TAXATION

2007 2006
£m £m
Current tax
United Kingdom 40 78
The Netherlands 28 49
Rest of world (134) (22)
Total current tax (credit)/charge (66) 105
Deferred tax
Ornigination and reversal of timing differences (46) {33)
Total taxation (cred:t)lcharge on profit from continuing operations (112) 72

The current tax (credit)/charge includes credits of £223m (2006 ml) in respect of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets
and capital losses that have been realised as a result of the disposal of discontinued operations and nil (2006 £65m) in respect
of prior year disposals

A reconcihiation of the notional tax charge based on average applicable rates of tax (weighted n proportion to accounting
profits) to the actual total tax expense 1s set out below

2007 2006
£m £m
Profit before tax 530 412
Tax at average applicable rates 158 137
Tax on share of results of joint ventures (&3] %)
Adjustments relating to prior year taxable profits - (65)
Caputal gains benefits on disposals (251) -
Non deductible amounts and other items {14) 6
Tax expense (112) 72
Tax expense as a percentage of profit before tax -21% 1 7%
The following tax has been recognised directly in equity during the year
2007 2006
£m £m
Tax on actuarial movements on defined benefit pension schemes (65) (45)
Tax on fair value movements on cash flow hedges (4) (18)
Deferred tax credits on share based remuneration 17 3
Net tax charge recogmised directly in equity {(52) (60)

During 2007, a tax charge of £9m was transferred to net profit from the hedge reserve (2006 £3m)
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ADJUSTED PROFIT

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group uses adjusted operating profit as an additional performance measure Adjusted operating
profit 15 stated before amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition mtegration costs, and 1s grossed up to exclude the

equity share of taxes i1n joint ventures

2007 2006

Note £m £m
Operating profit 850 814

Adjustments {post tax)

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 16 220 211
Acquisition integration costs 20 23
Reclassification of tax on joint ventures 8 10
Adjusted operating profit 1,098 1,058
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12 CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of operating profit before jomnt ventures to cash generated from operations -

continuing operations 2007 2006
Note £m £m
Operating profit before joint ventures 834 796
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 16 218 211
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 16 72 67
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18 76 81
Share based remuneration 7 38 44
Total non cash items 404 403
Increase 1in inventories and pre-publication costs (a1 (1)
Increase in recervables (42) (45)
(Decrease)/increase in payables (C2))] 30
Increase in working capital (94) (16)
Cash Eenerated from operations 1,144 1,183
Cash flow on acquisitions 2007 2006
Note £m £m
Purchase of businesses 13 (293) (149)
Investment 1n jont ventures (24) 4y
Deferred payments relating to prior year acquisitions (10) (13)
Total (327) (163)
Net
borrowmngs
Related from
dervative  sharcholders
Cash & cash financaal and fellow
equrvalents Borrowwngs INStrUIMERLS affibates 2007 2006
Reconciliation of net borrowings £m m £m £m im Em
At 1 January 322 (1,930 123 {6,066) (7,551) (7,314)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,991 - - - 1,991 §6
Net movement in bank loans overdrafts and commercial
paper - (15) - - {15) {(51)
Issuance of other loans - - - - - 407
Repayment of other loans - 62 - - 62 306
Repayment of finance leases - 12 - - 12 12

Net movement in borrowings from shareholders and the

Elsevier Reed Finance BV group - - (1,709) (1,709) (966)

Change 1n net borrowings resulting from cash flows 1,991 59 - (1,709) 341 (1,020)
Inception of finance leases - {11) - - (1 %
Fair value adjustments to borrowings and related - 41) 41 - - 3
Exchange translation differences 32 21 (2) (95) (44) 789
At 31 December 2,345 (1,902) 162 (7,870) (7,265) (7,551)

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan capital, finance leases, promissory netes, bank and other loans, and
those derivative financial instruments that are used to hedge the fair value of fixed rate borrowings
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ACQUISITIONS

During the year a number of acquisitions were made for a total consideration amounting to £319m, after taking
account of net cash acquired of £11m, the most significant of which were the Beilstein chemical compound
database and BuyerZone Inc

The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their fair value to the group’s businesses The fair values of the
consideration given and the assets and habilities acquired are summanised below

Book value on Far vatue
acquismion  BAjustments Far vatee Far value
Note im £m £m £m
Goodwtll 15 - 101 101 102
Intangible assets 6 - 262 262 87
Property, plant and equipment - - - 1
Current assets 7 - 7 9
Current hatnhties (14) - (14) (17
Deferred tax (2) {35) 37) (11)
Net assets acquired (9) 328 319 171
Consideration (after taking account of £11m net cash acquired) 319 171
Less consideration deferred to future years (26) (22)
Net cash flow 293 149

The fair value adjustments 1n relation to the acquisitions made 1n 2007 relate principally to the valuation of intangible assets
Goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the net tangible and intangible assets acquired, represents benefits which
do not quahfy for recognition as intangible assets, including skiiled workforces and acquisition synergies that are specific to
the Reed Elsevier Group plc group In addition, goodwill arises on the recogmtion of deferred tax habilities in respect of
mntangible assets for which amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions

The businesses acquired 1n 2007 contributed £5 Im to turnover, £17m to adjusted operating profit, increased net profit by £1m
and contributed £1m to net cash inflow from operating activities and for the part year under Reed Elsevier Group plc
ownership Had the business been acquired at the beginning of the year, the Reed Elsevier Group plc group's revenues,
adjusted operating profit and net profit for the year would have been £4,542m, £1,099m and £950m respectively
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14  EQUITY DIVIDENDS

Dividends declared duning the year

£ per share £milhon -
2007 2006 2007 2006
Dividends declared by subsidiary undertakings to Reed Elsevier NV 966 529
Dividends declared by Reed Elsevier Group plec
Interim to "E" ordinary shareholders - 22,99 - 230
Interim to "R ordinary shareholders 85,000 59,600 850 596
Total 1,816 1,355

The dividends paid by subsidiary undertakings relate to Reed Elsevier NV’s holding of shares carrying special dividend nights
in Reed Elsevier Overseas BV These shares do not carry any capital nghts beyond the right to repayment of their nominal
value

The dividends to be paid by the company are regulated by the equahsation arrangements between Reed Elsevier PLC and
Reed Elsevier NV, the company’s shareholders The arrangements have the effect of requiring dividends to be paid by the
company according to the respective requirements of the shareholders to enable them te pay dividends on their ordinary shares
on an equalised basis Accordingly, the proportion m which dividends are paid on either class of share will vary from one
dividend payment to another
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2007 2006
im £m
At 1 January 2,804 3,032
Acquisitions 101 102
Disposals (323) (20)
Reclassified as held for sale (117) -
Exchange translation differences (¢)] (310)
At 31 December 2,464 2,804

The carrying amount of goodwill 1s after cumulative amortisation of £1,313m (2006 £1,644m) which was charged prior to the

adoption of IFRS

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill 1s recorded 1n the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from each
acquisition The carrying value of goodwill recorded 1n each of the major groups of cash generating units 1s set out below

2007 2006
Goodwill £m £m
Elsevier 767 743
LexisNexis US 1,058 1,077
LexisNexis International 118 120
Harcourt Schools US - 302
Reed Exhibitions 302 264
Other 219 298
Total 2,464 2,804

The carrying value of each cash generating umit 1s compared with its estimated value in use, which 1s determined to be its
recoverable amount  Value 1n use 15 calculated based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value The
pre-tax discount rates used are between 10-12%, including a risk premium appropriate to the unit being reviewed Estmated
future cash flows are determined by reference to latest budgets and forecasts for the next five years, with a 3% long term

nominal growth rate assumed thereafter
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Total Internally
Marketand Content, acquired developed
customer  software ntangible intangible
related  and other assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At | January 2006 1,489 3072 4,561 645 5,206
Acquisitions 43 44 87 - 87
Additions - - - 108 108
Disposals (2) (16) (18} (72) (90)
Exchange translation differences (175) (238) (413) (49) (462)
At | January 2007 1,355 2,862 4,217 632 4,849
Acquisitions 63 199 262 - 262
Additmions - - 80 80
Disposals (544) (254) (798) (60) (858)
Reclassified as held for sale (29) (116) (145) 33) (178)
Exchange translation differences 27) 23 4) 16 12
At 31 December 2007 818 2,714 3,532 635 4,167
Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 201 1,673 1,874 355 2,229
Charge for the year 106 191 297 71 368
Disposals (n (16) 7 (63) (80)
Exchange translation differences (30 (136} (166) (25) (191)
At 1 January 2007 276 1,712 1,988 338 2,326
Charge for the year 52 166 218 72 2%0
Disposals (66) (107) (273 (52) (325)
Reclassified as held for sale 2) 7N (79) (9) (88)
Exchange translation differences (9 12 3 11 14
At 31 December 2007 151 1,706 1,857 360 2,217
Net book amount
At 31 December 2006 1,079 1,150 2,229 294 2,523
At 31 December 2007 667 1,008 1,675 275 1,950

Intangible assets acquired as a part of business combinations comprise market related assets (e g trade marks, imprints,
brands), customer related assets (e g subscription bases, customer lists, customer relationships), and content, software and
other intangible assets (e g editonial content, software and product delivery systems, other publishing rights, exhibition nghts
and supply contracts) Included in content, software and other acquired intangible assets are assets with net book value of
£817m (2006 £935m) that arose on acquisitions completed prior to the adoption of IFRS that have not been allocated to
specific categories of intangible assets Internally developed intangible assets typically comprise sofiware and systems

development where an 1dent:fiable asset 1s created that 1s probable to generate future econom:c benefits

Included 1n market and customer related intangible assets are £288m (2006 £293m) of brands and imprints relating to Elsevier

determined to have indefinite lives based on an assessment of their historical longevity and stable market positions

The amortisation charge includes £10m (2006 £91m) 1n relation to discontinued operations
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INVESTMENTS
2007 2006
£m £m
Investments 1n joint ventures 116 73
Available for sale investments 20 25
Shares 1n Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC 229 160
Venture capital investments held for trading 21 25
Total 456 283

At 3] December 2007, the Reed Elsevier Group ple Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT™) held 18,723,830 (2006 17,167,145)
Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and 10,100,765 (2006 9,242,214) Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares The EBT purchases
Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shares which, at the Trustee's discretion, can be used 1n respect of the exercise of
share options and to meet commutments under conditional share awards

An analysis of changes n the carrying value of investments in joint ventures 1s set out below

2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 January 73 71
Share of results of joint ventures 16 18
Dividends received from joint ventures (12) (16)
Additrons 30 1
Transfers - -
Exchange translation differences 9 (1
At 31 December 116 73

The principal joint ventures at 31 December 2007 are exhibition joimnt ventures within Reed Business and Guuffiré (an [talian
legal publisher in which Reed Elsevier Group plc has a 40% shareholding)

Summarised aggregate information in respect of joint ventures and the group’s share 15 set out below

Reed Elsevier Group plc

Total joint ventures share

2007 2007 2006

£m £m £m
Revenue 214 103 108
Net profit for the year 36 16 18
Total assets 302 143 99

Total liabilities (165) (76) (55)
Net assets 137 67 44
Goodwill 49 29
Total 116 73
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19

2007 2006
Fixtures
Land and Frxtures and Land and and
buildings  equipment Total buildings equpment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 179 665 844 192 690 882
Acquisitions - 1 1 - 2 2
Capital expendrture 6 70 76 9 8% 98
Disposals (26) (184) (210) (3) {53) (56)
Reclassified as held for sale 2) (45) 47 - - -
Exchange translation differences - - - (19 (63) (82)
At 31 December 157 507 664 179 665 844
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 82 464 546 84 485 569
Acquisitions - 1 1 - 1 1
Disposals (18) (148) (166) 3 (53) (56)
Reclassified as held for sale (¢} 30) 30 - - -
Charge for the year 8 68 76 8 83 9]
Exchange translation differences - - - (7) (52) {(59)
At 31 December 71 355 426 82 464 546
Net book amount at 31 December 86 152 238 97 201 298

At 31 December 2007 and 2006, all assets were included at cost No depreciation 1s provided on freehold land
The net book amount of tangible fixed assets includes £17m (2006 £16m) n respect of assets held under finance
leases relating to fixtures and equipment

The depreciation charge ncludes £1m (2006 £10m) in relation to discontinued operations

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the objectives, pelicies and strategies pursued by the Reed Elsevier Group pic group in relation to financial
instruments are set out wn the Directors® Report  The main financial risks faced by the Reed Elsevier Group plc group are
hiquidity sk and market risk - comprising nterest rate risk and foreign exchange nisk  Financial instruments are used to
finance the group’s businesses and to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks The group’s businesses do not enter into
speculative derivative transactions  Detatls of financial instruments subject to hquidity, market and credst nisks are described
below

Ligumdity nsk

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group maintains a range of borrowing facilities and debt programmes to fund its requirements, at
short notice and at competitive rates The remaining contractual maturities for borrowings and denvative financial instruments
are shown In the table below The table shows undiscounted principal and interest cash flows and includes contractual gross
cash flows to be exchanged as part of cross currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts where there 1s
a legal nght of set off
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Contractual cash flows

Carrying More than &
amount  Within 1 year 1-2 years. 2 Iyears 3-4 years 4 5years years Total
At 31 December 2007 £m £m fm £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings owing to
Third parties (1,598)  (469) an (76)  (349) (275 (1,210) (2,456)

Elsevier Reed Finance BV gron  (4,748) @I (1,376) (807) (972) (635) 917y  (5,698)
Floating rate borrowings owing to

Third parties (304) (185) 4) (128) - - - G317
Elsevier Reed Finance BV gron  (264) (264) - - - - - (264)
Reed Elsevier NV 1,377 (1,377 - - - - - (3™
Reed Elsevier PLC (1,520 (1,520) - - - - - (1,520)

Derivative financial habihties

Interest rate derivatives 3) m ) - - - 4) )]
Cross currency interest rate swaj - (233) - - - - - (233)
Forward foreign exchange contr (13) (459) (265) (118) - - - (842)
Dernivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 13 2 5 4 2 2 3 18
Cross currency mterest rate swaj 149 350 - - - - - 390
Forward foreign exchange contr: 32 480 276 120 - - - 876
Total (9,633) (4,627) (1,443) (1,005} (1,319) (908) (2,128) (11,430)
At 31 December 2006 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings owing to

Third parties (1,641) (175) (433) 77 (75)  (355) (1,502) (2,617)

Elsevier Reed Finance BV grot (4,838} (1,858) (1,235) (2429) (1,807} (1,421) (1,587) (10,337)
Floating rate borrowings owing to

Thurd parties (289) €3] (6) ©) (13D - - (150}
Elsevier Reed Finance BV groy (48) (48) - - - - - (48)
Reed Elsevier NV (407) (407) - - - - - (407)
Reed Elsevier PLC (942) (942) - - - - - (942)

Denivative financial habilities

Interest rate derivatives 4) (n n nm - - (4) )]
Cross currency interest rate swaj - (14) (238) - - - - (252)
Forward foreign exchange contr. (4] (289) (207 (1o - - - 597

Derivative financial assets

Interest rate derivatives 10 S 2 1 1 1 3 13
Cross currency interest rate swaj 117 19 355 - - - - 374
Forward foreign exchange contr 34 311 222 105 - - - 638
Total (8,009) (3,406) (1,541) (2,508) (2,012) (1,775) (3,090) (14,332)
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The carrying amount of derivative financial liabihties comprises nil (2006 £3m) in relation to fair value hedges, £10m (2006
£1m) 1n relation to cash flow hedges and £6m (2006 £1m} in relation to held for trading The carrying amount of derivative
financial assets comprises £162m (2006 £126m) 1n relation to fair value hedges, £27m (2006 £34m) in relation to cash flow
hedges and £5m (2006 £1m) in relation to held for trading

At 31 December 2007, the group had access to £1,502m (2006 £1,529m) of commuitted bank facilities that expire 1n two to
three years, of which £42m (2006 £39m) was drawn These facilities principally provide back up for short term borrowings

After taking account of the maturity of committed bank facilities that back short term borrowings at 31 December 2007, and
after utihising available cash resources (excluding £1,933m proceeds received from the part disposal of Harcourt Education,
which was included in the special distnibution to shareholders of the parent companies in January 2008), no third party
borrowings mature in the next two years (2006 nil), 9% of borrowings mature in the third year (2006 9%}, 38% 1n the fourth
and fifth years (2006 28%), 30% in the sixth to tenth years (2006 42%), and 23% beyond the tenth year (2006 21%)

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group also has borrowings from 1ts affiliate Elsevier Finance SA totaling £5,012m (2006
£4,886m} of which 20% mature 1n the next year (2006 17%), 23% mature 1n the second year (2006 13%), 12% mature 1n the
third year (2006 23%), 28% mature n the fourth and fifth years (2006 29%), and 1 7% mature 1n the sixth to tenth years
(2006 15%)

Market Risks

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group’s primary market risk exposures are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate
movements Derivatives are used to hedge or reduce the risks of interest rate or exchange rate movements and are not entered
into unless such risks exist Derivatives used by the group for hedging a particular risk, are not specialised and are generally
available from numerous sources The impact of market risks on net post employment benefit obligations and taxation 18
excluded from the following market risk sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group’s interest rate exposure management policy 1s aimed at reducing the exposure of 1ts
businesses to changes n interest rates

At 31 December 2007, afier adjusting for £1,933m of cash received from the part disposal of Harcourt Education, which was
included in the special distribution to shareholders of the parent companies 1n January 2008, 65% of net borrowings are either
fixed rate or have been fixed through the use of interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options A 100 basis point
reduction 1 interest rates would result 1n an estimated decrease in net finance costs of £33m (2006 £1]1m), based on the
composttion of financial instruments including cash, cash equivalents, balances with fellow joint ventures and Reed Elsevier
Group pic’s shareholders, bank loans and commercial paper borrowings at 31 December 2007 A 100 basis point rise in
interest rates would result in an estimated increase 1n net finance costs of £33m (2006 £11m) The range of changes
represents the group’s view of the changes that are reasonably possible over a one year period

The mmpact on net equuty of a theoretical change 1n interest rates as at 31 December 2007 1s restricted to the change in carrying
value of floating rate to undesignated interest rate derivatives A 100 basis point reduction in mterest rates would result in an
estimated reduction 1n net equity of £2m (2006 £2m) and a 100 basis point increase in interest rates would increase net equity
by an estimated £2m (2006 £2m) The impact of a change 1n mterest rates on the carrying value of fixed rate borrowings in a
designated fair value hedge relationship would be offset by the change 1n carrying value of the related interest rate derivative
Fixed rate borrowings not in a designated hedging relationship are carried at amortised cost

Foreign exchange rate risk
Translation exposures arise on the earmings and net assets of business operations in countries with currencies other than

sterling, most particularly in respect of the US businesses These exposures are hedged, to a significant extent, by a pohcy of
denominating borrowings n currencies where significant translation exposures exist, most notably US dollars (see note 22)
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A theoretical weakening of all currencies against sterling by 10% at 31 December 2007 would decrease the carrying value of
net assets, excluding net borrowings, by £265m (2006 £376m) This would be more than offset by a decrease in net
borrowings of £591m {2006 £590m) A strengthening of all currencies against sterling by 10% at 31 December 2007 would
increase the carrying value of net assets, excluding net borrowings, by £332m (2006 £461m) but increase net borrowings by
£722m (2006 £722m)

A retranslation of the group’s net profit for the year assuming a 10% weakening of all foreign currencies against sterling but
excluding transactional exposures would reduce profit by £82m (2006 £9m) A 10% strengthening of all currencies against
sterling on this basis would increase net profit for the year by £101m (2006 £13m)

Credit risk

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group seeks to limit interest rate and foreign exchange risks described above by the use of
financial instruments and as a result, has a credit risk from the potential non-performance by the counter parties to these
financial instruments, which are unsecured The amount of this credit nsk 1s normally restricted to the amounts of any hedge
gain and not the principal amount being hedged The group also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full principal
amount of cash and cash equivalents Credit risks are controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these counterparties,
principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks with strong long term credit ratings, and of the amounts
outstanding with each of them

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of nisk with individual
counterparties and do not allow significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A by Standard
and Poor’s, Moody’s or Fitch

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group has credit risk with respect to trade receivables due from its customers that include
national and state governments, academic nstitutions and large and small enterprises including law firms, book stores and
wholesalers The concentration of credit nisk from trade receivables 1s limited due to the large and broad customer base

Trade receivable exposures are managed locally 1n the business units in which they arise  Where appropniate, business units
seek to minimise this exposure by taking payment i advance and through management of credit terms  Allowance 1s made for
bad and doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of the risk, taking into account the ageing profile, expernience and
circumstance  The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s represented by the carrying value of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, recorded in the balance sheet

Included withun trade receivables are amounts which are past due but for which no allowance 1s made Past due up to one
month £232m (2006 £327m), past due two to three months £77m (2006 £109m), past due four to s1x months £26m (2006
£46m) and past due greater than six months £20m (2006 £25m) Examples of trade receivables which are past due but for
which no allowance has been made 1nclude those recervables where there 15 no concern over the creditworthiness of the
customer and where the history of dealings with the customer indicate the amount will be settled
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Hedge accounting
The hedging relationships that are designated under 1AS39 — Financial Instruments are described below

Fair value hedges

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group has entered into interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the
exposure to changes in the fair value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency movemenis which

could affect the ncome statement

[nterest rate derivatives (includmg cross currency interest rate swaps) with a principal amount of £47 lm, were n place at 31
December 2007 (2006 £479m) swapping fixed rate term debt 1ssues denominated 1n Umited States dollars (USD) and euros to

floating rate USD debt for the whole or part of their term

The gains and losses on the borrowings and derivatives designated as fair value hedges for the year ended 31 December 2007
and the prior vear, which are included in the income statement were

Fair value AL 31 Fair value A3

At 1 January movement Exchange  December  movement Exchange December

2006 gairv{ioss) gan/(loss) 2006 ganiloss) gan/(loss) 2007

fm im £m £m £m Em £m

USD debt (20) 12 1 7 (6) - (13)
Related interest rate swaps 19 (12) (1) 6 7 - 13
) - - ) L - :

Euro debt (104) (26) 14 (116) (35) 2 (149)

Related Euro to USD cross-currency interest

rate swaps 105 26 (14) 117 34 (2) 149

] - - 1 ()] - -

Total - - - - - - -

All fair value hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2007

During 2007, no (2006 £3m) fair value losses recogmised on adoption of [AS39 - Financial Insiruments were included in
finance income

Cash flow hedges

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group enters into foreign exchange derivatives which fix the exchange rate on a portion of future .
foreign currency subscription revenues forecast by the Elsevier science and medical business for up to 50 months
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Movements m the hedge reserve (pre-tax) in 2007 and 2006, including gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments
were as foliows

Foreign

Transiton  exchange  Total pre-tax

loss hedges hedge reserve

£m £m im
Hedge reserve at 1 January 2006 (losses)/gains deferred (4) 12 8
Gains arising in 2006 - 52 52

Amounts recognised in income statement 2 (14} (12)
Exchange translation differences - - -
Hedge reserve at 31 December 2006 (losses)/gains deferred ) 50 48
Gains arising 1n 2007 - 12 12

Amounts recogmsed 1n iIncome statement 1 (31) (30}
Exchange translation differences - 2 2
Hedge reserve 2t 31 December 2007 (Iosses)/gams deferred - (1) 33 32

All cash flow hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2007

A tax charge of £9m (2006 £14m)1n respect of the above gains and losses deferred in the hedge reserve at 31 December 2007
was also deferred in the hedge reserve

Of the amounts recognised in the income statement in the year, gamns of £31m (2006 £14m) were recogmsed n revenue and
losses of £1m (2006 £6m) were recognised 1n finance costs A deferred tax charge of £9m (2006 £3m) was recognised 1n
relation to these items

The transition loss relates to iterest rate derivatives which were not designated as hedging instruments on adoptton of [AS39
— Financial Instruments

The deferred gains and losses on cash flow hedges at 31 December 2007 are currently expected to be recognised in the income
statement in future years as follows

Foreign
Transibon  exchange  Total pre-tax
loss hedges hedge reserve
£m £m £m
2008 (1) 24 23
2009 - 9 9
2010 - 1 1
2011 - 1) (1)
(Losses)/ggms deferred 1n hedge reserve at 31 December 2007 (1) 33 32

The cash flows for these hedges are expected to occur in line with the recogmition of the gains and losses in the income
statement, other than In respect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions, where the cash flows may be
expected to occur in advance of the subscription year
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DEFERRED TAX
2007 2006
£m £m
Deferred tax assets 137 169
Deferred tax liabilities (689) (823)
Total (552) (654)
Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets are summarised as follows
Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
Excess of 1ax Other temporary ;emp?rnh:;
allowanes over Acqured Pensions  différences Tax ksses differences -
amortisation ntzngible assets habilities Labities camied forward Penswons essets Bssets Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax (ltability)/asset at
1 January 2006 (115) (799} - (12) 54 133 77 (662)
(Charge)/credit to profit ¥)] 87 4) (15) 47) 5 (C)) (5)
(Charge)/credit to equity - - (6) (20) - 39 5 (60)
Transfers 4) 5 4 1 3 2 (4 7
Acquisitions - (1) - - - - - (11}
Exchange translation differences 13 76 - 4 (3) &) (4) 77
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
31 December 2006 (133) (642) ©) 42) 7 92 70 (654)
(Charge)/credit to profit 29 63 - 14 ) (15) 16 46
(Charge)/credit to equity - - (44) (2) - 21) 16 (1)
Acquisitions - (38) - - 1 - - 37
Disposals 34 95 )] - - 3 (24) 101
Reclassified as held for sale 1 24 - 15 - - 40
Exchange translatron differences 2 - - - - (1) 2 3
Deferred tax (hiability)/asset at
31 December 2007 (125) (498) (51) (15) 5 52 80 {552)

At 31 December 2006, there were potential deferred tax assets of £193m not recognised due to uncertainties over availability
and timing of relevant taxable income, 1n relation to tax deductions carried forward of £483m These deductions were utilised

in 2007 as a result of the disposal of Harcourt Education

INVENTORIES AND PRE-PUBLICATION COSTS

2007 2006

£m £m
Raw materials 9 16
Pre-publication costs 153 403
Finished goods 106 212
Total 268 631
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23

2007 2006

Note £m £m
Trade receirvables 1,047 1,093

Less amounts provided for doubtful debts {48) (50}
Trade receivables 999 1,043
Prepayments and accrued income 135 163
Total 1,134 1,206

Trade receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair value

Trade receivables are stated net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts The movements tn the provision during the year

were as follows

2007 2006
Movements in amounts provided for doubtful debts im £m
At 1 January 50 65
Charged to income 19 10
Trade recetvables written off an (20)
Reclassified as held for sale (3) -
Exchange translation differences 1 (5
At 31 December 48 50

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

The major classes of assets and habilities of operations classified as held for sale, principally in respect of Harcourt

Assessment, are as follows

2007 2006
£m fm
Goodwill 118 -
Intangible assets 89 -
Property, plant and equipment 16 -
Inventories and pre-publication costs 54 -
Trade and other receivables 64 -
Fotal assets held for sale 341 -
Trade and other payables 44 -
Deferred tax hiabilities 40
Total habilittes associated with assets held for sale 84 -
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Payables and accruals 976 064
Deferred income 950 949
Total 1,926 1,913
BORROWINGS
2007 2006
Falling due Feiling due Fallng due  Falling due
withm | year after | year Total within | year after ! year Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 180 - 180 162 - 162
Finance leases 5 6 11 6 6 12
Other loans - 1,081 1,081 64 1,094 1,158
Other loans 1n fair value hedging relationships 369 261 630 - 598 598
Amounts owed to the ERF BV Group 981 4,031 5,012 867 4,019 4,886
Total 1,535 5379 6,914 1,099 5717 6,816

The total fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1s £1,336m (2006 £1,378m) The total fair value of

other loans 1n fair value hedging relationships 1s £685m (2006 £653m)
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2007 2006
Bank loans, Bk losn,
averdrafts end Amounts owed overdrafts and Amounts owed
commerczl wLRF BY commercial ©wERFBY  Fnance
Analysis by year of repayment paper  Other loans Group  Funance leases Total pages  Other loans Group  leases Toal
£fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £fm
Within 1 year 180 369 981 5 1,535 162 64 867 6 1,099
Within 1 to 2 years - - 1,140 3 1,143 - 340 628 3 971
Within 2 to 3 years - 125 632 3 760 - - 1,152 2 1,154
Withtn 3 to 4 years - 276 843 - L1119 - 127 630 1 758
Within 4 to 5 years - 225 561 - 786 - 280 847 - 127
After 5 years - 716 855 - 1,571 - 945 762 1,707
- 1,342 4,031 5,379 - 1,692 4,019 6 5717
Total 180 1,711 5012 11 6,914 162 1,756 4 886 12 6,816
2007 2006
Bank losns Bank |pans,
overdrafis and Amounts owed overdrafis and Amounts owed
commercal to CRF BY sommercal wERFBY  Finance
Analysis by currency paper  Other loans Group  Fmance leases Total paper  Other loans Group keases Total
Em £m im £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
US Dollars 108 1,311 4,341 11 5,771 94 1,356 4,284 12 5,746
£ Sterling 7 400 16 423 20 400 1 - 421
Euro - - 605 - 605 - - 558 - 558
Other currencies 65 - 50 - 115 48 - 43 - 91
Total 180 1,711 5,012 11 6,914 162 1,756 4,886 i2 6,816

Included in the US dollar amounts for other loans above 1s £369m (2006 £340m) of debt denominated in euros (€500m), that
was swapped nto US dollars on 1ssuance and against which there are related derivative financial instruments included within
trade and other receivables, which, as at 31 December 2007, had a fair value of £149m (2006 £117m)
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26 LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Finance leases

At 31 December 2007 future finance lease obligations fall due as follows

2007 2006

£m £m
Within one year 5 6
In the second to fifth years inclusive 7 7
12 13

Less future finance charges (1) ()
Total 11 12

Present value of future finance lease obligations payable

Within one year S 6
In the second to fifth years inclusive 6
Total 11 12

The fair value of the lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount

Operating leases

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group leases various properties, principally offices and warehouses, which have various terms

and renewal rights that are typical to the termitory 1n which they are located

At 31 December 2007 outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows

2007 2006

£m £m
Within one year 104 115
In the second to fifth years inclusive 318 353
After five years 273 356
Total 695 824

Of the outstanding commitments, £677m (2006 £800m) relates to land and buldings

The Reed Elsevier Group plc group has a number of leased properties that are sub-leased The future lease receivables

contracted with sub-tenants fall as follows

2007 2006

£m £m
Within one year 14 15
In the second to fifth years inclusive 42 47
After five years 11 21
Total 67 83
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PROVISIONS
2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 January 2% 44
Utilised 6) (1)
Exchange translation differences (1) (5)
At 31 December 21 28

The provisions are for property lease obligations which relate to estimated sub-lease shortfall and guarantees given n respect
of certain property leases for various periods up to 2016

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are contingent habilities amounting to £28m (2006 £36m) 1n respect of property lease guarantees

The Company has accepted, in accordance with clause 403 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, responsibilities for the
habalities, including trade creditors and external borrowings, totalling £95m (2006 £76m) of subsidiary
undertakings registered in the Netherlands

SHARE CAPITAL
Called up
1ssued and
Authonsed fully pard
31 0ec 3T Dec 2006
£ and no shares 2006 and and 2007
Preference shares (cumulative) of £1 each
- Irredeemable 7 50% 100,000 100,000
Ordinary shares of £1 each
- "R" ordinary shares 10,600 10,000
- "E" ordinary shares 10,000 10,000
Total 120,000 120,000

All of the preference shares rank equally in respect of the right to recetve fixed dividends

All of the “R” ordinary shares rank equally in respect of voting rights and the right to receive dividends All of the “E”
ordinary shares rank equally in respect of voting rights and the right to receive dividends

SHARE PREMIUM

2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 January and 31 December 324 324
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31 TRANSLATION RESERVE

2007 2006

£m £m

At 1 January 141 (122)
Exchange translation differences of foreign operations (71) 264
Cumulative exchange differences on disposal of foreign operations 148 -

Other exchange translation differences {2) )
At 31 December 216 141

32 OTHER RESERVES
Hedge Other

reserve  reserves Tatal Total

2007 2007 2007 2006

£m £m £m £m

At | January 34 (3,516) (3,482) (2,673)
Profit attributable to parent company's shareholders - 948 948 371

Dhvidends declared - (1,816) (5,816) (1,355)
Actuanial gains on defined benefit pension schemes - 224 224 139
Fair value movements on available for sale investments - (6) (6) 3

Cumulative fair value movements on disposals of available for sale

investments - () N -

Fair value movements on cash flow hedges 12 - 12 52

Tax recognised directly in equity C)] (48) (52) (60)
Increase in share based remuneration reserve - 46 46 49

Transfers from hedge reserve to net profit (net of tax) 2n - 2n 9)
Exchange translation differences 2 - 2 1

At 31 December 23 (4,175) (4,152) (3,482)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company 15 jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

There were no matenal transactions during the year between the Reed Elsevier Group ple group and its fellow joint ventures,
other than those disclosed 1n these accounts

The group’s fellow joint ventures are Elsevier Reed Finance BV and its subsidiaries Elsevier Reed Finance BY 15
incorporated 1n the Netherlands and jointly owned and controlled by Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV The Elsevier
Reed Finance BV group provides a range of treasury services and funding to the Reed Elsevier Group plc group

Foreign exchange contracts entered into during 2007 by Reed Elsevier Group plc and its subsidianes with its fellow joint
ventures amounted to £4,428m (2006 £1,116m)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Transactions between the Reed Elsevier Group plc group’s businesses have been eliminated within the financial statements

Transactions with joint ventures were made on normal market terms of trading and comprise sales of goods and
services of £6m (2006 £6m) As at 31 December 2007, amounts owed by joint ventures were £7m (2006 £3m)

Key management personnel are also related parties and comprise the executive directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed
Elsevier NV Transactions with key management personnel are set out below

2007 2006

£m £m
Salartes and other short term employee benefits 8 7
Post employment benefits 1 l
Share based remuneration 9 7
Total 18 15

Post employment benefits represent the service cost under 1AS 19 — Employee Benefits in relation to defined benefit schemes,
together with any contributions made to defined contribution schemes Share based remuneration 1s the amount charged in
respect of executive directors under IFRS2 — Share Based Payment

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 30 January 2008 the sale of the Harcourt Assessment business and remaimning Harcourt Enternational businesses, first
announced in May 2007, completed followmg receipt of regulatory clearance tn the United States Proceeds received on
disposal were £330m

On 20 February 2008, a dividend of £681m was paid by Reed Elsevier Overseas BV, a subsidiary of Reed Elsevier Group ple,
to Reed Elsevier NV

On 20 February 2008, Reed Eisevier approved a plan to divest Reed Business Information [n the year to 31 December 2007,
Reed Business Information reported revenues of £5806m, operating profit of £89m and adjusted operating profits of £119m

On 20 February 2008, Reed Elsevier entered into a defimtive merger agreement with ChoicePoint, Inc to acquire the company
for cash Taking into account ChoicePoint’s estimated net debt of $0 6bn, the total value of the transaction 15 $4 1bn  The
ChoicePoint board will convene a meeting of ChoicePoint shareholders to approve the merger and 1s unanimous 1n 1ts
recommendantion of the merger The merger 15 subject to customary regulatory approvals and 15 expected to be completed later
in the year The transaction will be financed imitially through commutted new bank faciliies, to be later refinanced through the
1ssuance of term debt

ChoicePoint provides unique information and analytics to support underwriting decisions within the property and casualty
Insurance sector, screening and authentication services for employment, real estate leasing and customer enrolment, and public
information solutions primarily to banking, professional services and government customers In 2007 ChoicePoint reported
revenues of £491m, operating income (before goodwill and asset writedowns) of £112m and earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation of £144m
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35 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authortsed for 1ssue by the board of directors of Reed Elsevier Group plc on 20
February 2008
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007

PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
£m tm
Fixed assels
Investments
Shares i subsidiary undertakings
Cost 866 897
Provided (4) (4)
Net book amount 862 893
Joint ventures 29 29
891 922
Current assets
Amounts owed by Reed Eisevier PL.C 2 2
Amounis owed by subsidiary undertakings 420 160
422 162
I otal assets 1,313 1,084
Current habihties
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (325) (278}
I'rade and other payables (1) {1)
(326) (279)
Net assets 987 805
Capital and reserves
Called up share capual - -
Share prenuum account 324 324
Revenue reserves 6063 481
Shaiceholders' funds 987 803
Approved

by the board of Reed Elsevier Group ple, 20 February 2008

ML o

M H Armour

Chief Financial Officer
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007

PARENT COMPANY RECONCILIATION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Share Share Profit and
capital  premium loss reserve

£m £m £m
At | January 2006 - 324 825
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - - 482
Ordinary dividends paid - - (826)
At 31 December 2006 - 324 481
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - - 1,032
Ordinary dividends paid - - (850)
At 31 December 2007 - 324 663

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventien 1n accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts in the financial statements
are 1n millions of pounds

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the company has not presented 1ts own profit and loss account
The Reed Elsevier Group plc accounting policies under UK GAAP are set out below

Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost, less provision, if appropriate, for any impawrment in value

Principal joint ventures and subsidiaries are set out in the supplementary information page

Foreign exchange translation

Transactions entered into in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction

Taxation

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full for timing differences using the lhability method Deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that they are considered recoverable in the short term Deferred taxation balances are not discounted
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the members of Reed Elsevier Group ple

We have audited the individual parent company financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended 31 December |
2007 (“the company financial statements™) which comprise the parent company balance sheet, the parent company reconciliation

of shareholders’ funds and the parent company accounting policies These company financial statements have been prepared under

the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Reed Elsevier Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2007

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1 accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them n
an auditors’ report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the company financial statements 1n accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
statement of directors' responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the company financial statements 1n accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and regulatory
requirements and Enternational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the company financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 We report to you if, 1n our opinion, the directors’ report 1s consistent with the company financial
statements The nformation given mn the Directors’ Report includes that specific iformation presented in the Operating and
Financial Review that 15 cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report

In addition we report to you 1f, 1n our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, 1f we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
transactions with the company 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained 1n the annual report, as described mn the contents section, and consider whether 1t 15
consistent with the audited company financial statements We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the company financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to
any further information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} 1ssued by the Auditing Practices
Board An audit includes exammation, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures n the company
financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors 1n the
preparation of the company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances, consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information and explanations which we considered necessary n order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the company financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opmion we also evaltuated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the company financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the members of Reed Elsevier Group ple

Opinion
In our opimnion

* the company financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with United Kigdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2007,

* the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

* the information given 1n the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the company financial statements

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

20 February 2008
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Principal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2007

Holding Companies

Reed Elsevier (UK) Limited ¥
Reed Elsevier (Holdings) Ltd ®
Reed Elsevier (Investments) plc
Reed Elsevier Holdings B V

Reed Elsevier Nederland B V
Reed Elsevier Overseas B V

Reed Elsevier US Holdings Inc
Reed Elsevier Inc @

Reed Elsevier Capital Inc
Harcourt, Inc

Reed Elsevier Properties Inc
Sctence & Medical

Elsevier Limited

Elsevier BV

Excerpta Medica Medical Communications B V
Elsevier In¢

Excerpta Medica, Inc

Academic Press %

Elsevier Health Sctences @
Mosby, Inc

MC Strategies Inc

Masson SAS

Masson SA

MDL Information Systems GmbH
Legal

LexisNexis Butterworths Tolley
LexisNexis ¥

Matthew Bender and Company, Inc
Martindale-Hubbel!

LexisNexis Risk Information and Analytics Group Inc
Seisint, Inc

LexisNexis SA

Butterworths Australia ¥
Education

Harcourt Assessment, Inc
Business

Reed Business Information Limited
Reed Exhibitions Limited

Reed Business Information B V
Reed Business Information US ¥
Reed Construction Data Inc

Reed Exhibitions

BuyerZone Inc

Reed Expositions France SA

Reed Midem Organisation SA
Groupe Strategies SA

Reed Exhibitions Japan Limited

{The Netherlands)
(The Netherlands)
{The Netherlands)
{USA)
(USA)
(USA)
(USA)
(USA)

{The Netherlands)
(The Netherlands)
(USA)

(USA)

(USA)

(USA)

(USA)

(USA)

(France)

{Spain)
(Germany)

(USA)
(USA)
(USA)
{USA)
(USA)
(France)
(Australia)

(USA)

{The Netherlands}
(USA)

(USA)

(USA)

(USA)

(France)

(France)

(France)

(Japan)

All are wholly owned subsidiary undertakings registered and operating 1n England and Wales unless otherwise stated

) Holding company, but also trades through one or more
operating divisions

2) Division of Elsevier Inc

3) Division of Reed Elsevier (UK) Limited

(4) Division of Reed Elsevier Inc

(5) Dnvision of Reed International Books Australia Py Lid

(6) Direct subsidiary undertaking of Reed Elsevier Group ple
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Principal joint ventures at 31 December 2007

Operating in Principal place of pusiness
Dott A Guuffre Editore Spa 40% Italy, Via Busto Arsizio, Milan
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